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Dear Shareholders,

2021 is a very challenging year to Vanov Holdings Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”). Being the first year to implement the “14th Five-Year
Plan” of the Peoples' Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”),
driven by the factors such as upgrading of social needs, increase
in environmental protection policies, continuing advancement
of technology and changes in the supply of resources, the
papermaking industry had, in respond, accelerated the reduction
of low-end production capacity, and had been increasing industry
concentration, leading to an optimizing industry structure. The
supply-side reform and the adjustment of the raw material
structure had further improved the prosperity of the industry, and
the duly implemented “zero import quota on recovered paper”
policy had accelerated the overseas layout of leading paper
enterprises.

As an essential part of the papermaking industry chain, the
Group responded calmly to the new changes in the papermaking
industry and solidly did well in every steps of the work by focusing
on quality, cost and research and development. We made full
efforts to achieve technology upgrade and market expansion. With
the concerted efforts of all staff, the Group's revenue from sales
and profit both recorded a year-on-year increase in 2021. The
Group's total revenue in 2021 increased by 16.9% to RMB213.7
million compared to last year, and net profit increased by 22.6%
to RMB59.5 million. Net profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to RMB50.1 million. Earnings per share
for the year were RMB13.7 cents (2020: RMB11.1 cents). The total
sales volume of the Group in 2021 was 1,401 tonnes.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

According to the latest information of National Bureau
of Statistics of China, from January to December 2021, the
nationwide production volume of machine-made paper and
paperboard reached 135.839 million tonnes, representing a year-
on-year increase of 8.833 million tonnes or 6.8%, making a new
record high through breaking the cap of 130 million tonnes for the
first time.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHRE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRE

In 2021, the demand for packaging papers in e-commerce,
take-away and other services, as well as the demand for
household paper as a necessity in daily lives of Chinese
residents, continued to rise due to the recovery of consumption
and the implementation of the new plastic ban order. According
to the statistics of the Secretariat of the Household Paper
Committee, from January to December 2021, the disclosed
production capacity of household paper industry accumulated to
approximately 2.686 million tonnes per year. Attributable to the
accelerated urbanisation and economic growth, the consumption
of paper products such as packaging paper, household paper
and cultural paper are expected to demonstrate a steady and
sustainable growth in the forthcoming years.

The market demand for papermaking felt is associated with
the demand for papers. The increase in output of paper machines,
upgrade, replacement and expansion of production capacity from
papermaking enterprises will drive the demand for papermaking
felts. In 2021, there was a rising trend of industrial concentration
in the overall papermaking felt industry, which was mainly
reflected in the fact that the leading enterprises of the industry
continued to retrofit and upgrade their existing equipment through
increasing capital investments, as well as enhanced investments
in research and development, leading to a significant improvement
in quality, output and sales volume of the products. The small-
scale papermaking felt enterprises had been gradually falling
behind because of insufficient investment of resources.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

China's economy had proved its resilience under the
COVID-19 pandemic. When the vaccination rate continues to
rise, it is expected that the global economy and supply chain
will recover at a fast pace, which will have positive impacts on
the development of the overall macro-economy and the paper
industry. In the long run, with the Chinese government stressing
the promotion of policies regarding “Dual Circulation” economic
development, e-commerce and “replacement of plastic with
paper”, the rigid demand for paper, especially for packaging paper,
will be driven. In estimation, the production and consumption
volume of machine-made paper and paperboard in the PRC will
grow at a CARG of approximately 4.9% and 5.1%, respectively
from 2021 to 2025. Meanwhile, amid the new normal of raw
material supply, implementation of rectification measures on
environment protection such as “coal-to-gas” will accelerate the
elimination of obsolete production capacities, resulting in a rising
level of productivity of the industry.
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The market demand for papermaking felt is associated with
the demand for papers. The increase in output of paper machines,
upgrade, replacement and expansion of production capacity from
papermaking enterprises will drive the demand for papermaking
felts. Driven by the expected growth of domestic paper production
and strong demand for papermaking felts in Southeast Asia, the
sales volume of papermaking felt has seen a rapid growth from
2016 onwards. According to the statistics, from 2016 to 2020,
the sales volume of papermaking felts in the PRC grew from
approximately 12,820.1 tonnes to approximately 17,487.9 tonnes,
representing a CAGR of approximately 8.1%. It is expected that
the growth is set to maintain at a CAGR of 6.3% from 2021 to
2025.

DEVELOPMENT PLAN

In 2022, the Company will focus on production capacity
expansion with an aim of consolidating its market share while
proactively looking for business development opportunities that
would perform synergies with its principal undertaking through
increasing the investments in research and development.

1. Establishing a foothold in its principal business by
producing quality and intelligent papermaking felts. The
Group will continue to strengthen its main business
of papermaking felts, the high-end industrial filter
material products, through which to establish its core
competitiveness and to develop production, sales and
technical capabilities reaching the world-class standard.
Also, the Group will increase efforts on brand marketing
to establish a global leading brand position.

2. Creating a papermaking machine service ecosystem
of papermaking machine efficiency oriented in multi-
dimensions. The Company will develop a service platform
through accumulated data, loT and Al analysis technology
based on its papermaking machine operation efficiency
optimization service system to provide papermaking
integrated service plans aiming to improve efficiency
while reducing energy consumption, and to seek and
integrate quality business resources within the ecosystem
that will bring synergies to the Group's development.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHRE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRE

3. Strengthening ESG management, fulfilling corporate
social responsibilities resolutely, improving internal
control system, environmental protection, safety and staff
training and other mechanisms. By adopting advanced
technology in production to continuously reduce the
corporate carbon emissions and using quality products
to assist the papermaking industry in lowering its carbon
emissions, the Group will be able to attain sustainable
and high-quality growth in enterprises and the industry.

APPRECIATION

The Group would like to express its sincere gratitude to all
staff, investors, suppliers, customers, government at all levels,
banks, business partners and other stakeholders for their trust
and support towards the Group. In the future, it is believed
that leveraging on market-leading position in the papermaking
felt industry, as well as throughout and steady strengths in
development, the Group will be able to improve its profitability
consistently; thereby maximising the interests of the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group principally engages in the design, manufacture and
sales of papermaking felts under the brands of \/ANQCV and
/855;%;' Papermaking felts are fabrics used in the papermaking
machines for dewatering, pressing, forming and drying of
paper in the papermaking process and are consumables with a
replacement cycle of approximately 30 to 180 days. The Group
provides comprehensive papermaking felts services to customers,
from conducting on-site visits and advising customers on the
types and specifications of papermaking felts, to sourcing suitable
raw materials for its production, conducting quality control,
delivering papermaking felts to customers and providing after-
sales services.

The Group developed and launched a trial version of
Huanlong Paper Machine Efficiency Operation System* (& 4% 14 i&
B EBILIREE T F S R 4), which is able to gather and store
the data of its customers’ papermaking machines collected during
the provision of its services, so that it can analyse the data and
customise the product for customers and provide technical advice
of improving the efficiency of customers’ papermaking machines.
As part of its sales and marketing strategies, upon completion
of the development and the launching of the formal version
of system, this online platform will allow the Group’s selected
customers to access its services remotely such as reviewing
product development plans, tracking orders and production status,
reviewing product examination and technical reports and giving
feedback on the efficiency of their papermaking machines.

Riding on its research and development capabilities and data
stored in the system, in order to increase customer stickiness to
its products, the Group currently also provides complementary
papermaking machine efficiency optimisation services from
pre-sales technical advice in the use of suitable products and/
or customisation of products to after-sales technical advice
and evaluation of the effectiveness on customers’ papermaking
machine to its customers, with a view to increase customers’
operational efficiency.

The Group’s customers are primarily paper and paper
products manufacturers and trading companies, which can be
categorised by geographical region, including: (i) PRC paper and
paper products manufacturers and trading companies; and (ii)
overseas paper and paper products manufacturers and trading
companies. Monofilaments and fibre, which are mainly made from
nylon, are the major raw materials for the Group’s production.
The Group’s suppliers, who are mainly based in the PRC, provide
the Group with raw materials, some of which were imported from
Germany and Switzerland.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group principally engages in the design, manufacture
and sales of papermaking felts under the brands of VANQCV
and /igggg. The revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021
was apprg);mately RMB213.7 million, representing an increase
of 16.9% as compared to approximately RMB182.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly attributable to

the increase in sales of medium-speed and high-speed felts.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately RMB113.6 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB14.0 million from approximately
RMB99.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. Its gross
profit margin decreased from approximately 54.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately 53.2% for the year
ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly attributable to the
change in product mix and an increase in cost of raw materials.

Other Income

Other income for the Group decreased by approximately
RMBO0.5 million from approximately RMB6.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB5.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly attributable to
the decrease in government subsidies income.

Selling and Distribution Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2021, selling and distribution
expense of the Group was approximately RMB19.9 million, as
compared to approximately RMB17.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. Selling and distribution expense for the year
ended 31 December 2021 accounted for approximately 9.3% of
its revenue, representing an increase of approximately RMB2.1
million from the year ended 31 December 2020. The increase in
selling expense was generally in line with the increase in revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, administrative
and other operating expenses of the Group was approximately
RMB31.6 million, as compared to approximately RMB32.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020. Administrative and other
operating expenses for the year ended 31 December 2021
accounted for approximately 14.8% of the Group’s revenue,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB0.6 million as
compared to that of the year ended 31 December 2020. Such
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in listing expenses.

Finance Cost

For the year ended 31 December 2021, total finance cost of
the Group reached approximately RMB8.2 million, representing
an increase of approximately RMB1.0 million as compared to
approximately RMB7.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The main reason for such increase was the increase of loan
interests in other borrowings.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 reached approximately RMB8.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1.3 million from
approximately RMB7.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, which was mainly attributable to the increase in the Group’s
profit before tax.

Effective tax rate (income tax expense divided by profit before
income tax for the current year) for the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately 14.7%, as compared to 15.4% for the
year ended 31 December 2020. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to more favorable tax policies implemented by the
PRC government and an increase in deductible research and
development expenses ratio.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Turnover Days of Inventories, Trade Receivables and
Trade Payables

Turnover days of inventories of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 were 40.0 days, as compared to 46.9 days for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Turnover days for trade receivables of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 were 211.0 days, as compared to 209.7
days for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was in line with
the credit period granted by the Group to its customers.

Turnover days for trade payables of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 were 80.4 days, as compared to 86.3
days for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2021, net assets of the Group reached
approximately RMB215.0 million (2020: approximately RMB164.3
million). As at 31 December 2021, current assets and current
liabilities of the Group reached approximately RMB178.0 million
(2020: approximately RMB182.1 million) and approximately
RMB185.3 million (2020: approximately RMB171.1 million). As at
31 December 2021, the current ratio of the Group was 96.1%, as
compared to 106.4% as at 31 December 2020.

The Group normally finances its operations from cash
generated from its operating activities and bank borrowings. As
at 31 December 2021, outstanding borrowings of the Group was
approximately RMB127.5 million (2020: approximately RMB115.0
million). These bank borrowings and other borrowings were
generally secured by its property, plant and equipment and land.
As at 31 December 2021, bank balances and cash of the Group
reached approximately RMB12.6 million (2020: approximately
RMB29.8 million). Net gearing ratio (total borrowings minus cash
and cash equivalents and divided by shareholders’ equity) of the
Group as of 31 December 2021 was 55.9% (31 December 2020:
53.6%).

The Group has sufficient cash and available bank credit to
meet the commitment and its operating cash requirement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s trading and monetary assets are denominated
in RMB. The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use
of financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and
in its investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall financial risk management
policies focuses on the unpredictability and volatility at financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Group. No derivative financial instruments are used to hedge any
risk exposures.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s assets were
pledged to secure bank borrowings of the Group. The aggregate
carrying amount of the assets of the Group pledged at 31
December 2021 was approximately RMB76.3 million.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Trade and Other Payables

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the trade and other
payables of the Group were approximately RMB58.8 million.

Employee and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 309 employees.
The remuneration package offered by the Group to its employees
generally includes salary, allowances and payment for welfare
contributions, including social insurance contributions and housing
provident fund contributions. The Group determines its employees’
remunerations based on each employee’s qualification, relevant
experience, position and seniority. The Group conducts annual
review on salary increments, bonuses and promotions based on
the performance of each employee.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

As at 31 December 2021, save for the instances disclosed
in the section headed “Business — Legal proceedings and
compliance — Non-compliances — (2) Non-compliance in
relation to social insurance contributions” in the prospectus of
the Company dated 29 December 2021 (the “Prospectus”),
the Group had made contributions for its employees in the PRC
to social security funds (including pension insurance, medical
insurance, work-related injury insurance, unemployment insurance
and maternity insurance) and housing provident fund. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the total staff cost, including
salaries, wages and other benefits, and contributions to defined
contribution plans, amounted to approximately RMB35.8 million.

The Group provides regular on-the-job training to the
employees and conducts yearly reviews of their performance. The
Group believes that these initiatives have contributed to stronger
work incentive among its employees.

The Directors and senior management receive compensation
in the form of salaries, benefits in kind and discretionary bonuses
with reference to salaries paid by the comparable companies,
time commitment and the performance of the Group. The
Group regularly reviews and determines the remuneration and
compensation package of the Directors and senior management,
by reference to, among other things, market level of salaries paid
by comparable companies, the respective responsibilities of the
Directors and senior management and the performance of the
Group.

Remuneration committee of the Group will review and
determine the remuneration and compensation packages of the
Directors with reference to their responsibilities, workload, the
time devoted to the Group and the performance of the Group. The
Directors may also receive options to be granted under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company.

The Group has not experienced any material labour disputes
with the employees which had a material impact on its business,
financial conditions or result of its operations. The Group has
maintained good relationships with its employees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RECENT DEVELOPMENT

Global Offering and Listing

On 29 December 2021, the Company offered 114,200,000
ordinary shares (the “Shares”) for subscription by public by
way of global offering (the “Global offering”). The offer price
per Share was determined at HK$1.22 and the Shares were
successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 11 January 2022. The net proceeds (after deduction of
underwriting fees and commissions and other listing expense)
from the Global Offering were approximately HK$92.8 million. In
addition, the over-allotment option granted by the Company to
the International Underwriters (as defined in the Prospectus) was
partially exercised and the Company further issued 3,442,000
Shares, representing approximately 3.0% of the number of
Shares of the Company initially offered at HK$1.22 in the Global
Offering. The additional net proceeds from the partial exercise
of the over-allotment option were approximately HK$4.2 million.
The net proceeds would be applied in manners described under
the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” to the
Prospectus.

The Shares were only listed in January 2022. The Company
raised new capital through the Global Offering in 2022, and details
of the proposed use of proceeds are set out in the Prospectus.

Impact of the COVID-19 Outbreak

In light of the strict measures against the COVID-19 outbreak
and gaining vaccination rate, the PRC economy has demonstrated
steady recovery during 2021. However, due to unstable outbreak
in many countries around the world, limited international
transportation, increase in energy and bulk raw material costs as
well as the implementation of the “zero import quota on recovered
paper” policy in the PRC, the operation pressure on the paper
packaging industry in the PRC has not been eased.

While facing various uncertainties, the Group further
enhanced its virus prevention measures, taked advantage of
its production scale and raw material procurement, provided
quality products and services, expanded premium customer
base and implemented effective cost control, as such, the
Group achieved new high in both sales value and sales volume,
with an outstanding increase in profits. In addition, due to the
effective control on working capital and financial risks, the Group
maintained the net gearing ratio and cash flow at a stable level
despite the increment in capital expenditure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FUTURE PLANS

In order to boost the business development of the Group,
the Directors intend to implement the following measures: (i) the
Group has executed the production capacity expansion plan in
three phases from 2021 to 2024 in order to satisfy the increasing
demand in its high-speed papermaking felts. Such additiona
production capacity is intended mainly for manufacturing the
papermaking felts used for paper machines of higher speed;
(ii) the Group plans to upgrade the Huanlong Paper Machine
Efficiency Operation System* (&M EL XX EBLLREH T F
& % #1) to facilitate the collection of information from customers’
papermaking machines and production machinery and equipment,
support the analysis of the data collected from the machines,
build database and promote customised product services based
on its analysis of the data. The Group will continue to develop its
production machinery and equipment based on the information
collected using the online platform and allocate more resources to
procure staff with relevant expertise to strengthen its information
technology facilities; (iii) to achieve future growth, the Group
may selectively pursue strategic acquisitions that complement
its business and strategic priorities, such as for expanding the
business horizontally in the industry chain and supply chain,
taking into account factors such as the financial and competitive
positions of potential acquisition targets. In particular, the Group
intends to acquire papermaking screens manufacturer(s) with the
capacity to produce drying screens ($24%) and three-layer screens
(= E#9), another consumables required by paper manufacturers
during the papermaking process, since generally the Group’s
paper and paper products manufacturers customers which
purchase papermaking felts from the Group needs papermaking
screens as well, they are major consumables for pressing, forming
and drying in the whole papermaking process.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS
FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

There were no other significant investments held, no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, nor was there any plan authorized by the board of
directors (the “Directors”) of the Company (the “Board”) for
other material investments or additions of capital assets as at 31
December 2021.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to maintain high standards of
corporate governance to protect the interests of its Shareholders
and to enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company
has adopted all the code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as its own code
on corporate governance practices. The Board has reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance practices and is satisfied that
the Company has complied with all code provisions of the CG
Code since 11 January 2022 (the “Listing Date”) and up to the
date of this annual report. The Company will continue to enhance
its corporate governance practices appropriate to the conduct and
growth of its business and to review such practices from time to
time to ensure that it complies with the CG Code and align with
the latest developments.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries of all the Directors, each of the Directors has
confirmed that he/she has complied with the Model Code during
the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing
the operation and financial performance of the Group. The Board
reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering overall
strategy, major acquisitions and disposals, annual budgets, annual
and interim results, recommendations on Directors’ appointment
or re-appointment, approval of major capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial matters. The
management was delegated the authority and responsibility by
the Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition, the
Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this
corporate governance report.
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Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
seven Directors and their respective roles are as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. Shen Genlian (Chairperson)

Mr. Zhou Jun (Chief executive officer)
Mr. Xie Zongguo

Ms. Yuan Aomei

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Ip Wang Hoi
Mr. Zhang Shenjin
Mr. Wang Yunchen

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. Save for Mr. Zhou Jun, being
the spouse of Ms. Shen Genlian, the Chairperson of the Board
(the “Chairperson”), the Board members have no relationship
(whether financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships) amongst members of the Board.

Board meeting

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group, in
addition to the meetings for reviewing and approving the Group’s
annual and interim results. The Directors had participated in the
Board meetings as indicated below. For those Directors who could
not attend these meetings in person, they participated through
electronic media.

The joint company secretaries of the Company (the
“Company Secretaries”) assists the Chairperson to prepare
the agenda of the meetings and each Director may request to
include any relevant matters on the agenda. Generally, at least 14
days’ notice is given for the regular meetings by the Company. All
substantive agenda items have comprehensive briefing papers,
which are, in general, circulated three days before convening each
Board meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

All the Directors are able to seek advice and services from
the Company Secretaries on the Board procedures and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, and corporate governance
matters. Draft minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
committees are circulated to all Directors for comment and
approval as soon as practicable after the meetings. Minutes of
Board meetings and meetings of Board committees are kept
by the Company Secretaries and all Board members are given
a copy of the minutes for their record. Should a matter being
considered involve a potential conflict of interest of a Director, the
Director involved in the transaction would be requested to leave
the boardroom and abstain from voting. The matter would be
discussed and resolved by other Directors. Policy is in place that
the Directors, upon reasonable request, may seek independent
professional advice on issues related to the Group’s business at
the Company’s expenses. During the period from the Listing Date
to the date of this annual report, the attendance of the individual
Directors at the meetings is set out below:

Executive Directors BITES

Ms. Shen Genlian AR 2+

Mr. Zhou Jun B E A

Mr. Xie Zongguo R B 5 A

Ms. Yuan Aomei MWLt
Independent non-executive Directors BYkBITES
Mr. Ip Wang Hoi SN e

Mr. Zhang Shenjin RESEE

Mr. Wang Yunchen TEREE

No annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) was
held during the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
annual report because the Company was listed on 11 January
2022 and therefore there is no attendance record of the Directors
at general meeting.
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Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a specific term. The Directors have been initially
appointed for a period up to the AGM of 2022, unless and until it
is terminated by either the Company or such Director. The term of
appointment of each Director is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the AGM in accordance with its articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”) and
the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Articles of Associations, one-third of all
Directors (whether executive or non-executive) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at each AGM at least once
every three years.

The Articles of Association provide that any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
first AGM of the Company. Any Director so appointed after his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The Company may, in accordance with the Articles of
Association, by ordinary resolution remove any Director before
the expiration of his/her term of office notwithstanding anything
to the contrary in the Articles of Association or in any agreement
between the Company and such Director.
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Directors’ training =8|

Code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code provides that directors TEEATATUEXCIANBRTE EEES
should participate in continuous professional development to MEBEEXRE BRI E NN KR E
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure REEBBTEELIHEMRIEMFENERATHE
that their contribution to the Board remain informed and relevant. FEELER - 2RESEEBRDLREFIR HH
All the Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous EEANTEBNEFTBAERBREEEN T - 2
professional development activities by ways of attending training HEBEEEERTEY BREEERHEMNDE  BE
and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s business 2021F 12 AMBLEFE EFEIHNEXZIIBEN
or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. A summary of T

professional training received by the Directors for the year ended
31 December 2021 according to the records provided by the
Directors is as follows:

Attending seminar(s)/
programme(s)/
conference(s) and/or
reading materials relevant
to the business or
directors’ duties

HEEHEEEHWHE
R/ SHEREEREEH
EEB XS
Ms. Shen Genlian AR 4 \/
Mr. Zhou Jun B B %k & V
Mr. Xie Zongguo HoRE LA V
Ms. Yuan Aomei e QiR edun 3
Mr. Ip Wang Hoi L N e \
Mr. Zhang Shenjin wESEE \
Mr. Wang Yunchen FTEBRTE V
Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance EEKREABEZERERR
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover ARRIEREZRSFBEEEABEZRE 5t
for the Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal ARREE  AABERERETEREREA R XA
actions against Directors, officers and senior management of the EREEETIRERE -

Company arising out of corporate activities.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

In accordance with the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code,
the roles of the chairperson and the chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Currently, Ms. Shen Genlian, the Chairperson, is responsible
for the for strategic development and providing advice on the
operation and management of the Group. Mr. Zhou Jun, the chief
executive officer of the Company, is responsible for the overall
management, strategic and major decisions on the development
and planning and operation of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the requirement of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent non-
executive Directors, one of whom has appropriate professional
qualification in accounting and financial management expertise.
All independent non-executive Directors have confirmed their
independence, as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, to
the Company and the Board considers that all independent non-
executive Directors have satisfied their independence of the
Group.

All independent non-executive Directors have offered
sufficient time and efforts to serve the business affairs of
the Company. They also possess appropriate academic and
professional qualifications and related management experience
and have contributed to the Board with their professional opinion.
The Board believes that the participation of independent non-
executive Directors shall offer their independent judgment on
issues relating to strategy, performance, conflict of interest and
management process such that the interests of all Shareholders
and the Group are considered and safeguarded.

To ensure that independent views and input are available to
the Board, the Company has established mechanisms including
(i) strengthening the independent non-executive Directors’
recruitment process to include criteria such as each candidates’
available time commitments and qualification; (ii) reviewing the
number of independent non-executive Directors on an annual
basis; (iii) performing additional assessment or evaluation of
independent non-executive Directors’ contribution; and (iv) engage
external independent professional advisors to assist performance
of the Directors’ duties. The Board will review the implementation
and effectiveness of the above mechanisms on an annual basis.

During the year under review, the Chairperson had held a
meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of the other executive Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Implementation and execution of the policies and strategies
formulated by the Board and the daily operations are delegated
from the Board to the management of the Company. In addition,
an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), a remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and a nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) have been set up to
assist the Board in fulfilling certain responsibilities. All committees
have been established with defined written terms of reference,
which were posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkex.com.hk) and the Company (www.vanov.cn). All
committees shall report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made. All committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are,
among other things, to review and supervise the Group's financial
reporting process and internal control and risk management
system, nominate and monitor external auditors, provide advice
and comments to the Board on matters related to corporate
governance and perform other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ip Wang Hoi, Mr. Zhang Shenjin
and Mr. Wang Yunchen. Mr. Wang Yunchen currently serves as
the chairman of the Audit Committee. During the meeting of the
Audit Committee held on 30 March 2022, the Audit Committee
reviewed, among other things, the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 with
recommendations to the Board for approval and discussed with
the management and the external auditor the accounting policies
and practices which may affect the Group, the report prepared by
the external auditor covering major findings in the course of the
audit and the accounting and financial reporting matters.
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The Audit Committee held one meeting during the period ExZEgE LMAMEEARAFERERGHE
from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report. Individual BIT—REe®E  SLEENEEBLMRABERERFE
attendance of each committee member at the meeting during the WMEAHBAMNEZ LR RABLOT:
period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report is as
follows:

Attendance/

Number of meetings

Name of Committee Member ZEERERS EERE EBRK
Mr. Ip Wang Hoi BEiMEE 1/1
Mr. Zhang Shenjin ?E IE ik 11
Mr. Wang Yunchen ERREAE 11

The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 AEEHE2021F12A31BLEFENFEEER
December 2021 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee RRXEFSEM  CHERZZESEMH -
before submission to the Board for approval.

Remuneration Committee FHEES

The Remuneration Committee was established with written ARRERYEFMEZEEE  WRELEMHAE
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing 325 RBEERTREMMINBEBEDE - i BN
Rules and the CG Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration %E\QE’UI;:HE%EZ%(EEP@%)MZK ABWANER
Committee are, among other things, to make recommendations ERBERNESERHEES TS ERBRITBEHEE
to the Board on the Company’s policy for human resource %&%%&%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ@ﬂw\]ﬂwﬁ&m% o
management as well as establish and review policies and
structure in relation to remuneration for the Directors and senior
management.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent FTHNEEeH=RBURITESTEK A
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhou Jun, Mr. Ip Wang Hoi AL ERRITERRESLE - %ﬁﬁ'ﬁf‘ﬁi
and Mr. Zhang Shenjin. Mr. Ip Wang Hoi currently serves as the BEETTFMEZESE/F - H2022F3A308ETH
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. During the meeting yiZzeageat FHZESETEARAIES
of the Remuneration Committee held on 30 March 2022, the SREEENERE BRIFMBERAARES
Remuneration Committee has assessed the performance of the ReaREBENAE TRNESTRHEBES -

Directors and senior management of the Company and reviewed
and recommended to the Board the remuneration policy and
structure relating to the Directors and senior management of the
Company.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the FWEEea LTRAMBREAFERSBHMBE
period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report. BIT—REe®E  SLEENEEBLMRABERERFE
Individual attendance of each committee member at the meeting WEBHENSRLBEAHEBT:

during the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual
report is as follows:

Attendance/

Number of meetings

Name of Committee Member ZEERERS EERE EBRK
Mr. Zhou Jun JE Bk 5t A 11
Mr. Ip Wang Hoi HEiFTE 11
Mr. Zhang Shenjin RESSTE 11

The remuneration for the Directors and senior management EERAATEENTHEEELAT S  BIKE
comprises basic salary, retirement benefits and discretionary FIRBEIELA - HE2021F12A3MBLEFESIMFE
bonus. Details of the amount of emoluments of Directors paid for ENFHEEFBREN GV B RERMT -
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee REZES

The Nomination Committee was established with written ARRIEKYIREBEZESG  UREGEERTA
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary EMIPEBEHRE - REZESHNETEBRELA(H
duties of the Nomination Committee are, among other things, to FEBAESSHBEFAESSR S hEEE
make recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill ZERHRMAE FEBIYFRATEETOBE LM B
vacancies on the Board and/or in senior management, to assess EFENEARETTEEEEREMN LR HEM
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors, BRI kBEREARENRE  ULREZEES
to review the time commitment required of the Directors and to H-
evaluate whether the Directors have committed adequate time
to discharge their responsibilities to review and implement the
Nomination Policy and to consider related matters.

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive RELZECHPERE " BRTESLRELLT - M
Director, Ms. Shen Genlian, and two independent non-executive BBEIUFPNTESTEGHEERTERLE - LB
Directors, Mr. Ip Wang Hoi and Mr. Wang Yunchen. Ms. Shen BAUTHKRETREZESIE - W202263AH30H
Genlian currently serves as the chairperson of the Nomination RITHIREEZEEERT  REZESGERIARER
Committee. During the meeting of the Nomination Committee (EeERERE EF8E  RERAMKMN

held on 30 March 2022, the Nomination Committee has reviewed Mt B IERITEETNE LM -
and considered, among other things, the Nomination Policy,

the structure, size and composition of the Board and assessed

independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee carries out the process of
selecting and recommending candidates for directorships by
making reference to the balance of expertise, skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of such individuals, the requirements of the business of the Group
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. Further,
pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
and the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee, when
reviewing the composition of the Board, will have regard to the
Company’s Board Diversity Policy and the progress on achieving
the objectives set for implementing the said policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report.
Individual attendance of each committee member at the meeting
during the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual
report is as follows:

Name of Committee Member ZEgREHRS
Ms. Shen Genlian LR

Mr. Ip Wang Hoi BT E

Mr. Wang Yunchen FEREE
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board adopted
a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) setting
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against selection criteria, having
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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The Board’s composition as at the date of this report under
diversified perspectives is summarised as follows:

Designation EDs

ZERML WITES
Gender Females
E3]] ZIE
Age Group

Education background Bachelor
HEES E45E
Professional experiences MEEER{EINIY 10-20
BEER(F) DR10F 10-20F
1 2 3

As at 31 December 2021, the ratio of male and female in the
workforce is 53% and 47%, respectively; and the ratio of male and
female in the senior management is 60% and 40% respectively.
As such, the Company’s workforce and the senior management
have both achieved gender diversity between males and females.
The Company would continue to take into account of diversity
perspectives in its hiring.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy and monitor its implementation on an annual basis. The
Nomination Committee will report annually to shareholders on the
process adopted in relation to the Board appointments and the
consideration given to the diversity on the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a director nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) on 9 December 2021 in relation to the
nomination, appointment, re-appointment of new Directors and
the nomination procedure of the Company, which provides that
in evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
Nomination Committee shall consider the candidates’ character
and integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience, independence, diversity on the Board, willingness
to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a Board member
and such other criteria that are appropriate to the business of the
Company.

TEERRE

REARERH BB ESSAKB AN

T
INEDs
B IFNITES
Males
S
Postgraduate or above
IR A bA £
4 5 6 7

R2021412A318 - EI W B R R H B A£53%
KAT% : MEAERENBE L ED R E60%M40% °
Eit - AREMEBEI RS REEBHYEER B LR
L ARRNERBAARKESZESLTER -

RAZEEKEFENEFTEREZTILERRY
ERHEERBR REZEEHEBFARRERZ
TEEFENEMRANEFULRHEZEKESZ T
EFEH R Z & o

REBRE

BEESOR2021F12A98RMIRG  ZT - EH
ZAHESERARANREAEFREMNEZTRAEREK
(MREBBXR]) ZHEACTRAZESNTETMNE
FREAN EEEZERBANRELREE HE
Big - e MEmkER Bl - EFTE€L b
BREEERAZCHNHEBITEESRENRER
BHRARARRERHEMIZAE -

Annual Report 2021 3§ 27



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A fm
ERERRE

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) on 9 December 2021. A summary of the Dividend Policy
is disclosed as below.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders and requirement
of the relevant law, the Company shall pay annual dividends to the
Shareholders if the Group is profitable, operations environment is
stable and there is no significant investment or commitment made
by the Group, after taking into account the factors as detailed
below and determined by the Board from time to time. The
remaining net profits will be used for the Group’s development and
operations. The Dividend Policy allows the Company to declare
special dividends from time to time in addition to the annual
dividends.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take
into account, inter alia, (i) the Company’s actual and expected
financial performance; (ii) retained earnings and distributable
reserves of the Group; (iii) the level of the Group’s debts to
equity ratio, return on equity and the relevant financial covenants;
and (iv) the general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and other internal and external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company.

Any final dividends declared by the Company must be
approved by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders at an AGM
and must not exceed the amount recommended by the Board. The
Dividend Policy shall be reviewed periodically and submitted to
the Board for approval if amendments are required.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code, namely: (i) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board; (ii) to review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management; (iii) to review and monitor the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (including in relation to
securities trading) applicable to employees and the Directors; and
(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report in the Company’s
annual report.
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During the Board meeting held on 30 March 2022, the Board
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and legal and regulatory compliance, training and
continuous professional development participations of the
Directors, as well as the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining a
sound and effective internal control and risk management systems
for the Group to safeguard Shareholders’ investments and assets
of the Company at all times.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

The Company has appointed Ms. Liu Jiayan and Ms. Mak Po
Man Cherie as the joint company secretaries of the Company. Ms.
Mak Po Man Cherie of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited, an external service provider, has been engaged by
the Company as one of the joint company secretaries to support
the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and
that the Board policy and procedures are followed. Ms. Liu Jiayan
is the financial controller of the Group, and is the primary contact
of Ms. Mak Po Man Cherie at the Company.

Ms. Mak has confirmed that she has complied with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules in relation to the professional training
requirements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining a
sound and effective internal control and risk management systems
for the Group to safeguard the Shareholders’ investments and
assets of the Company at all times.

The Company has established a set of comprehensive risk
management policies and measures to identify, evaluate and

manage risks arising from operations.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification

+ ldentifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s
business and operations.
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Risk Assessment

» Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria
developed by the management; and

» Considers the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response

*  Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

« Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

* Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

* Revises the risk management strategies and internal control
processes in case of any significant change of situation; and

* Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management and
the Board regularly.

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance with
relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper maintenance
of accounting records for provision of reliable financial information
used within the business or for publication; and to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement, loss or
fraud.

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness.
The Board oversees the overall risk management of the Group and
endeavours to identify, control impact of the identified risks and
facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
Audit Committee assists the Board in the review, which covers
operational, financial, compliance controls and risk management
functions, to maintain an adequate and effective internal control
system to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the
assets of the Group. The risk management and internal control
systems of the Company are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failures to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. A review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems, including
financial, operation and compliance controls, will be conducted by
the Board at least annually.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function. Taking
into account the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s
business, the Board have sufficient capacity to oversee the design
and implementation of the risk management and internal control
system and to assess its effectiveness, and accordingly there is
no immediate need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group. The Directors will review annually the needs for internal
audit function.

The Company has engaged an external consultant to perform
a review on the Group's internal control and risk management
systems. With the assistance of the external consultant, the Board
conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group and considered the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget. The Board is not aware of any significant
internal control and risk management weaknesses nor significant
breach of limits or risk management policies, and considers the
existing internal control system and risk management system
effective and adequate.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group strictly follows the requirements of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance of (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”) and the Listing Rules and ensures that inside
information is disclosed to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe
harbours of the SFO. Before inside information is fully disclosed to
the public, such information is kept strictly confidential. In addition,
the Group adopted the policy of disclosing relevant information
only to appropriate staff within the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 and ensure that
they are prepared in accordance with the statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure
the timely publication of the consolidated financial statements.
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The statement of the external auditor of the Company with
regard to their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements, is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 60 to 66 of this annual report.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cause the Company not to continue as a going concern.
Therefore, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern
approach in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, services provided
to the Company by external auditor, Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited, and the fees paid were:

RN BV INE AR BB B AR R B AR A B S R AR B0 R R
BEAENRLE N AFRFOREF6EHNBILKXR
B & o

EEMR BREMAN KELHABEAEEN
B HEVTHAEEMAALREARADTISRFE
EEQRENBEAMNREAZNHABEESMNR -
- EENRESAUBBERSEERATAEALE
A o

B AT =

REZE2021F12831H L FE » HNE % A0 B
(BEB)ETMELMER AT AARNIFRENRE R
WE R BRI

2021
20214
RMB’000
AR® T

Audit services EZR
Annual audit fee FEEZEHR 800
Reporting accountants fee relating to the listing ERLMOERRETMER 433
Grand total 45t 1,233
Non-audit services IE T % R 8

The main non-audit services provided by Grant Thornton
Hong Kong include tax compliance services.

ANNUAL REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO THE
MEMBERS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is as
follows:

Remuneration bands (RMB) FHEER(ARET)

Nil — 1,000,000 Z£ -1,000,000

Further details of the Directors’ emoluments and five highest
paid individuals required to be disclosed under Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
about the Group’s performance to the Shareholders through
the publication of interim results and annual results in a timely
manner. In addition to dispatching circulars, notices and financial
reports to the Shareholders, additional information is also
available to the Shareholders on the website of the Company.

The Shareholders are encouraged to attend the general
meetings of the Company and the Directors always make efforts
to fully address any questions raised by the Shareholders at the
AGM and the extraordinary general meetings (the “EGM”) of the
Company. In addition, the Shareholders have the right to nominate
a person to stand for election as a director at any general meeting
by lodging a written notice to the Company.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on 22
June 2022, the notice of which will be sent to the Shareholders in
accordance with the Articles of Association, the Listing Rules and
other applicable laws and regulations.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting and to put forward
proposals at general meetings

The Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meetings by requisitioning an EGM. Pursuant to article 58 of the
Articles of Association, EGM may be convened by the Board on
the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Pursuant to article 85 of the Articles of Association, no
person other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for election
as a Director at any general meeting unless a notice signed by a
Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election and also a
notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong (as shown below) provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s) are
given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are
submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgement of such
notice(s) shall commence on the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

The Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing. Contact details are as follows:

Vanov Holdings Company Limited

No. 519, Section 2, Xinhua Avenue

Chengdu Strait Science and Technology
Industry Development Park Wenjiang District
Chengdu Sichuan Province, PRC

The Board regularly reviews the Shareholders' communication
policy to ensure its implementation and effectiveness and
to reflect current best practices in communications with the
Shareholders and the investment community, and considers that
the Shareholders' communication policy is effective and adequate.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

In preparation for the listing of the Shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”), the Company
has conditionally adopted the Memorandum and Articles of
Association on 9 December 2021, which became effective on the
Listing Date. Since then, the Company has not made any changes
to its Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up-to-date
version of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles is also
available on the websites of the Company (www.vanov.cn) and of
the Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Shen Genlian (Ji 12 ), aged 54, Chairperson, an executive
Director and the chairperson of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. She is responsible for strategic development and providing
advice on the operation and management of the Group. Ms. Shen is
also a director of each of Lion Courage Enterprises Limited (“Lion
Courage”), Vanov Tianhe International Holdings Limited, Virtuous
Way Limited, Marvel Dragon Development Limited and Sichuan
Huanlong Technology Fabric Co., Ltd.* (FU)I[IRBER MM ER A
Al) (“Sichuan Huanlong”), all of which being subsidiaries of the
Company. She is the spouse of Mr. Zhou Jun. Ms. Shen obtained a
Bachelor Degree in Mechanical Engineering (Instrumentation and
Test System) from East China Institute of Technology* (% 5 T £ )
(currently known as Nanjing University of Science and Technology* (F3
RIE T KE)) in July 1990 and completed a study of Advanced Studies
Course for Postgraduate in Business Administration (12 & 12 2 F}
BRI A RTE E(E ) at Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics* (78 /3 81 #& X £) in December 2000. Ms. Shen has more
than 19 years’ experience in papermaking felts manufacturing industry.
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Mr. Zhou Jun ( A B& ), aged 58, chief executive officer
of the Company, an executive Director and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is responsible
for overall management, strategic and major decisions on the
development and daily operation of the Group. Mr. Zhou is also
director of each of Lion Courage, Chengdu Huanlong Funeng
Technology Co., Ltd* (A #BIR s il s Bt AR 2 7)) (“Huanlong
Funeng”), Chengdu Huanlong Lixin Technology Co., Ltd.* (B #B
REMMEI AR 27) (“Huanlong Lixin”), Sichuan Huanlong
and Shanghai Jinxiong Paper Making Net Carpet Co., Ltd.* (/&
SRR EMMH AR A F]). He is the spouse of Ms. Shen Genlian.
Mr. Zhou graduated from the Technical School of China Academy
of Engineering Physics* (FRE TR YW TERK) in July
1982 and completed a study of Advanced Studies Course for
Postgraduate (In-service Programme) in Business Administration
(CEEEMEERZEEHR(FEREE)) at the Business School
of Sichuan University* (HJII X272 ) in July 2000. Mr. Zhou
is a Vice President of the 6th Council of Sichuan Papermaking
Industry Association* (/I EERITEMER EEESRE
f), a Vice Chairman of the 6th Council of Sichuan Papermaking
Industry Association* ()| A ERITEHBEE ~EESSE B
%), a Vice Chairman of the 9th Council of Sichuan Province
Papermaking Association* (lU)lI| & EHEeF N EREFE B
%= &), a Standing Director of the 10th Council of Sichuan Textile
Engineering Society* (H)I&# B I RS2 FE+EBEFSER
¥2 =), a Standing Vice President of the 2nd Council of Sichuan
Papermaking Industry Association Household Paper Branch*
(HNEERTEHEEERA» SE_ERESEHKAS
£), an Individual Director of the 8th Council of China Technical
Association of Paper Industry (FEERE2eFENEEES [
A ZE) and was a Vice President of the 4th Council of China
Nonwovens & Industrial Textiles Association* (FF B & % 3 47 4 &
TEWEFENEEEEEEK). Mr. Zhou has more than 20 years’
experience in papermaking felts manufacturing industry.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Xie Zongguo (#i R El), aged 50, an executive Director
of the Company. He is responsible for the overall daily operation
and research and development management, and participating
in decision-making in respect of major matters. Mr. Xie is also a
director of Sichuan Huanlong. Mr. Xie obtained a Bachelor Degree
in Textile Engineering from the Tianjin Textile Institute* (X3Z#%j
% T 2B3) (currently known as Tianjin Polytechnic University*
(REZTEKZ)) in July 1993. Mr. Xie has more than 20 years’
experience in papermaking felts manufacturing industry. He
currently serves as general manager and director of Sichuan
Huanlong. Mr. Xie is an individual director of the 8th Council of
China Technical Association of Paper Industry (71 & & 4% 2 & 5 )\
B2 =2 E A=) and a technical expert of the PRC papermaking
felt industry jointly awarded by the China Non-wovens & Industrial
Textile Association, Papermaking Textile Branch* (FF B & % A 4
BRTEBSERBHSSD L) and the Dewatering Equipment
Profession Committee of China Technical Association of Paper
Industry* (T ERE SR KEMEEZTE D).

Ms. Yuan Aomei (R 1#§), aged 41, an executive Director
of the Company. She is responsible for providing advice on the
operation and management. Ms. Yuan obtained a graduation
certificate of Top-up Undergraduate Degree (Z &l F ARl &£ %
#&Z£) in Business Administration (part-time) from Southwestern
University of Finance and Economics* (785 8 & A £) in July
2010. Ms. Yuan has more than 12 years’ experience in business
administration. Ms. Yuan joined Huanlong Industrial Group Co.
Ltd* (JREE TEEE AR A A]) in August 2008 and worked as the
director of its capital operations management centre* (& & & &
EIFRLMEE) from 2014 to December 2020. She left Huanlong
Industrial Group Co. Ltd* GRETLEXEE AR A7) and joined
Sichuan Huanlong as head of treasury since January 2021. Before
joining the Group, Ms. Yuan worked as office manager of Chengdu
Zhishan Tea Cultural Development Ltd.* (K& ZE & X L& R
AR AR from January 2007 to August 2008, and as capital
representative* (& & #M£)) of Chengdu Tianyou Development Ltd.*
(X EB K & 2 R B R 2 7)) from January 2003 to December 2006.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ip Wang Hoi (¥ %z8), aged 46, an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. He is also the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee, and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He is
responsible for supervising and providing independent advice on
the operation and management of the Group. Mr. Ip obtained his
Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting and Finance
from the University of Hong Kong in December 1998 and Master of
Business Administration from the University of Chicago Graduate
School of Business in March 2008. Mr. Ip has been a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
September 2001 and a fellow of CPA Australia since November
2020. Mr. Ip was designated as a Chartered Financial Analyst
by the CFA Institute in September 2005. Mr. Ip has more than
20 years’ experience in accounting, investment banking and
corporate finance. Mr. Ip joined Arthur Andersen in September
1998 and was transferred to PricewaterhouseCoopers with effect
from 1 July 2002. Mr. Ip left PricewaterhouseCoopers in April
2004 and his last position was a manager. Mr. Ip was employed
by J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited from March 2011
to March 2016 and his last position was an executive director in
the global investment banking department. Mr. Ip was employed
by Tuspark Financial Holdings (HK) Limited from March 2017
to February 2020 and his last position was the chief executive
officer of the corporate finance department — TUS Corporate
Finance Limited. Mr. Ip has been the responsible officer of Wings
Securities Limited since February 2020.

Mr. Zhang Shenjin ( 3k € &, formerly known as Zhang
Shenlian 5R1& &), aged 51, an independent non-executive Director
of the Company. He is also a member of each of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is responsible
for supervising and providing independent advice on the operation
and management of the Group. Mr. Zhang has over 14 years of
experience in financial news reporting. Mr. Zhang worked for China
Business Times Shandong Reporter Station* (7 T 7 5 57 (L &R
707 Uh) from September 1992 to July 2006 and worked as reporter
stationmaster* (7C & Uk U4 &) from 1997. Mr. Zhang has served as the
fourth secretary-general of China Paper and Pulp Industry Chamber
of Commerce* (FELB TN & 4 ¥EME) since November
2017. Mr. Zhang obtained a graduation certificate of Junior College
Program (BRI 2 %% £) in Chinese Language and Literature by
correspondence education from Shandong Heze Education University*
(LA S22 B Z6t) (currently known as Heze University* (37 /& £
B)) in June 1992.
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Mr. Wang Yunchen (E3&B), aged 37, an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. He is also the chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee
of the Company. He is responsible for supervising and providing
independent advice on the operation and management of
the Group. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor Degree, a Master
Degree and a Doctorate Degree in Financial Management from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics* (78 g Bf 4% K
£ in June 2007, March 2010 and December 2013, respectively.
Mr. Wang was awarded the professorship of Accounting
qualification issued by Sichuan Agricultural University (24 )| 2 %
KE) in December 2020. Mr. Wang has been working for College
of Management of Sichuan Agricultural University (P0)I| 2 2 X
&) since January 2014 and serves as the head of its department
of financial management. Mr. Wang currently serves as a
postdoctoral researcher at the Postdoctoral Program Research
Station of business administration* (LE EEB B LS
Uk) at Fudan University. Mr. Wang was awarded the third prize
of the 18th Social Science Outstanding Achievement of Sichuan
Province* (HIIEE TN AR ERBEFHR=54) in August
2019.

Mr. Wang obtained a listed company senior management
training* (LM A A =& %E B A B157l) graduation certificate issued
by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in March 2017. Mr. Wang was
an independent director of Sichuan Jinyu Automobile City (Group)
Co., Ltd* (m)Il&FABH(EE) KM BERAT) a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000803)
from October 2019 to December 2019. Mr. Wang currently serves
as an independent director of Chengdu Xingrong Environmental
Co., Ltd.* (BK#H mE AR FZ K H B R 2 7A]), a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000598) and an
independent director of Sichuan Crun Co., Ltd.* (F9JI|JIE 5B A
fR A7), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 002272).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Liu Jiayan, aged 40, the financial controller of the Group
and one of the joint company secretaries of the Company. She
is responsible for the Group’s overall company secretarial and
financial matters. Ms. Liu has more than 10 years’ experience in
accounting and finance industry and has been registered as a
certified public accountant in the PRC since September 2012. Ms.
Liu worked at Chengdu Colorful Polymer Materials Co., Ltd (5% &P
& B THHERDBR2AE]), a company listed on the National
Equities Exchange and Quotations (stock code: 872870), as a
director from December 2017 to February 2019, and a secretary
of board and finance controller from December 2017 to January
2019. Ms. Liu worked at Changjiang Securities Ltd. Chengdu
Guanghua Village Street Securities Business Department* (&)L
EAEBRMDBEBRQRIKH L ENTEFLEE) from August 2015
to February 2017, Chengdu New Hope Properties Ltd.*(fX &P %1
FEBEABRAA) from June 2014 to July 2015 and WUYIGE
Certified Public Accountants LLP, Sichuan branch* (KX{Z &€ &f
Bl 2575 AT U Il 9 FT) from September 2010 to June2014 and was
mainly responsible for accounting and auditing. Ms. Liu obtained
a bachelor degree (distance learning) in accountancy from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (78 i B 48 KX
) in July 2014.

Mr. Gao Qiang, aged 47, the sales director of the Group.
He is responsible for the creation of sales strategies and the
management of sales goals and targets. Mr. Gao has more
than 20 years’ experience in sales and papermaking felts
manufacturing industry. Before joining the Group, Mr. Gao has
worked for Huanlong Industrial Group Co. Ltd* RE T ¥ £ E
B[R A 7)) as sales manager since December 2001, responsible
for the creation of sales strategies and the management of sales
goals and targets. Mr. Gao left Huanlong Industrial Group Co.
Ltd* RELEESE AR A A)) and joined Sichuan Huanlong as
sales manager in February 2007 and currently serves as the sales
director of the Group. Mr. Gao obtained a graduation certificate
of Junior College Program (£ &} £ % £) in Textile Engineering
issued by the Wuhan Textile Industry College* (& & 45 4% T 2z)
(currently known as Wuhan Textile University* (i £ 45 4% X £2)) in
July 1998.
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Ms. Lin Xiaoyan, aged 40, the director of the operation
department of the Group. She is responsible for the promotion
of the operational efficiency and quality for the Group’s overall
marketing. Ms. Lin has more than 14 years’ experience in corporate
management and operation. She joined Sichuan Huanlong since
its establishment in February 2007 and was promoted to operation
director in April 2019. Ms. Lin obtained a graduation certificate of
Junior College Program (H R 2% £) in Industrial Enterprise
Management jointly issued by the Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics* (78 /@ 81 &% KX 2%) and the Sichuan Province
Higher Education Self-study Examination Committee* (FU)I| & & 5
HBEBEEEHZE2)in December 1999 and a graduation certificate
of Specialized Secondary School Program (L BFSHEERKE

#& £) in Pulp and Paper Making Process from the Sichuan Light
Industry School* (P9)I| & & T 2 2 4%) in July 2000.

Ms. Mak Po Man Cherie, aged 47, is one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company. Ms. Mak is the Vice
President of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong)
Limited. She has worked for various professional firms and listed
companies in Hong Kong, with over 17 years of experience in the
fields of audit, accounting, corporate finance, compliance and
corporate secretarial. Ms. Mak obtained a Master of Corporate
Governance degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2017. She has been admitted as an associate member of The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom in 2017, a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2003,
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in 2006.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 67.

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to Shareholders amounted to nil, representing the
aggregation of the share premium, the contributed surplus and the
retained profits.

FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years is set out on page 164 of the
annual report.

PROPERTIES OWNED BY THE GROUP

The Group owns properties in Wenjiang District, Chengdu,
Sichuen, the PRC for production (the “Properties”), pursuant
to the valuation of an independent firm of qualified professional
property valuer, their value amounts to approximately
RMB70,550,000 as at 31 October 2021, as disclosed in the
Prospectus. No additional depreciation that would be charged
against the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income had the Properties been stated at valuation in the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. Details of
the Properties owned by the Group as at 31 December 2021 are
set out on page 162.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY

One factory building of the Properties was on 5 December
2021 leased to an independent third party in a short term basis for
investment purpose. Details of the movements in the investment
property of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements. Details of the major investment
property held by the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set out on
page 163.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment at a cost of approximately RMB75.8 million (2020:
RMB20.3 million) for the purpose of expanding its business.
Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business and indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business are provided in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion sections
of this annual report. An analysis using key financial performance
indicators is set out in “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section while the principal risks and uncertainties are contained
in the “Notes to Financial Statements” section of this annual
report. Compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group can be found throughout
this annual report, in particular, the “Corporate Governance
Report”. Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance are covered by a separate Environmental, Social
and Governance (ESG) Report which will be available on the
Company’s website under the “Corporate Social Responsibility”
section and the website of the Stock Exchange on or before 31
May 2022. The above sections form part of this Report of the
Directors.

Key relationships with stakeholders

The Group believes that its success depends on the support
from its key stakeholders, namely employees, customers and
suppliers.
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Employees

The Group endeavours to provide better working conditions
and attractive remunerations to its employees. The Group offers
remuneration package to its employees, which include salary,
allowances and payment for welfare contributions, including social
insurance contributions and housing provident fund contributions.
Based on the performance of each employee, the Group will
provide salary increments, bonuses and promotions, so as to
encourage the employees’ personal developments. The Group
provides regular on-the-job training to its employees in order to
build up a sound career platform for employees.

Customers

The Group has developed strong relationships with its
customers. The Group communicates and works closely with its
customers during the entire production process to ensure that its
products are properly designed and manufactured in accordance
with the customers’ production needs. For the purpose of
strengthening business relationships with customers, the Group’s
sales and marketing teams will visit customers’ production
facilities regularly to understand their needs and keep abreast of
the latest development and trends of its customers’ products. As
part of the Group’s after-sales service, it issues complimentary
technical advisory proposals to the customers analysing the
performance of their production machines, in order to provide
tailor-made papermaking felts solutions to its customers.

Suppliers

The Group maintains good relationships with its key suppliers
through the established long-term business relationships with
them. The Group carefully selects its suppliers of raw materials
and maintains a list of approved suppliers. The approved suppliers
are selected based on a number of factors, including product
quality, supply capacity, pricing and way of settlement. The Group
believes that the established long-term business relationships
with these key suppliers enables the Group to have a steady
supply of raw materials which are manufactured according to
the specifications and timing requested by it and its customers,
and such relationships have been built upon a mutual trust and
confidence over the years of cooperation between the Group and
suppliers.
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Social insurance and housing provident fund
contributions

As disclosed in the section headed "Business — Legal
proceedings and compliance — Non-compliances — (2)
Non-compliance in relation to social insurance contributions"
in the Prospectus, the Group did not pay social insurance
contributions of approximately RMB3.3 million according to the
Social Insurance Law of the PRC and housing provident fund
contributions of approximately RMB1.0 million according to the
Regulation on Administration of Housing Provident Fund, for the
three years ended 31 December 2020. Up to the date of this
annual report, the Group did not receive any demand of payment
or penalty from the relevant PRC regulatory authorities, including
Chengdu City Wenjiang District Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau* (FKE MR ME A DERMT FHRER) and
Chengdu Housing Provident Funds Management Centre* (A #D
FEAEEEEF L), in respect of such non-payments of social
insurance contributions and housing provident fund contributions.
As disclosed in the Prospectus, Ms. Shen Genlian and Mr. Zhou
Jun have committed that they will fully and unconditionally make
and pay such social insurance contributions and housing provident
fund contributions when required by the regulatory authorities,
and will fully and conditionally compensate for any other expenses
or economic losses incurred by the Group because of such
non-compliances.

RESERVES

Movements during the year in the reserves of the Group and
the Company are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 70 and note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BONDS ISSUED

The Company did not have any bonds in issue or existence for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

BORROWINGS

Details of borrowings of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in notes 24 and 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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TAXATION

The information on the taxation of the Company and the
Group in 2021 is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Shen Genlian (Chairperson)

Mr. Zhou Jun (Chief executive officer)
Mr. Xie Zongguo

Ms. Yuan Aomei

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Ip Wang Hoi (appointed on 9 December 2021)
Mr. Zhang Shenjin (appointed on 9 December 2021)
Mr. Wang Yunchen (appointed on 9 December 2021)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on page
35 to page 39 of this annual report.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract
(“Directors’ service Contract(s)”) with the Company for a term
up to the end of the AGM of 2022 which is subject to termination
by either party giving not less than three month’s written notice.
Since the Directors' service contracts will expire on the date of
AGM of 2022, all the Directors shall retire from office at the AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Subject to
the approval of their re-elections by the Shareholders at the AGM,
each of the Directors will enter into a new service contract with the
Company for a term of three years from the date of the AGM of
2022.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1), all change and updated
information regarding the Directors and chief executive are set
out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management”. Save as disclosed in the above section, there
was no change to any of the information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(a) to (e) and (g).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and five highest paid
individuals during the year are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Articles of Association provide that the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their
respective offices. Such provisions were in force during the
course of the year under review and remained in force as of the
date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT EERKRD  HEROREEFTINER
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING )59}
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

R2021F12A318 » ARG ZREEFNARAISHE
ERAEEER (TR LBFRPEBKRIEXVE) B K
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its B HEROREESY EEREBEEFLMBERK
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the W%XV*B%?&W“ BAHGARA RERMARER
SFO) as recorded in the register which have to be notified to the KA BB EF R EGIIFEIS2GBLENF
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 .:Eﬂﬁﬁ\] MREREKE BB EETFUAENGEAR
of Part XV of the SFO or are required to be kept under Section AR ER AR
352 of the SFO or required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
each Director and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,

(i) Long positions in the Shares (i) RBROPHEFR

Approximate
percentage of
interest in the

Number of
Shares held/

Name of Director Capacity/Nature interested in Company
BE/BEREE R AR &

Expf 50/ HE B R0 BB MERNBE DL

Ms. Shen Genlian (Note) Founder of a discretionary trust; 359,947,200 74.46%
interest of spouse

AR At (F 7)) TREFAZA:RBER

Mr. Zhou Jun (Note) Founder of a discretionary trust; 359,947,200 74.46%
interest of spouse

JB Bk 5 & (K at) PREEFAIZA REBER

Note: Perfect Angle Limited (“Perfect Angle”) and Wonderful Ht## - Perfect Angle Limited ([Perfect Angle]) &

Advisor Limited (“Wonderful Advisor”) are holding
269,960,400 and 89,986,800 Shares. Each of Perfect Angle
and Wonderful Advisor is directly and wholly owned by Vistra
Trust (Singapore) Pte. Limited (“Vistra Trust”), the trustee
of the SGL Trust and the ZJ Trust. The SGL Trust is an
irrevocable discretionary trust established by Fame Attain
Limited (“Fame Attain”), which is wholly-owned by Ms.
Shen Genlian, as the settlor. The beneficiaries of the SGL
Trust are Ms. Shen Genlian and the children of Ms. Shen
Genlian. The ZJ Trust is an irrevocable discretionary trust
established by South Source Enterprises Limited (“South
Source”), which is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou Jun, as the
settlor. The beneficiaries of the ZJ Trust are Mr. Zhou Jun
and the children of Ms. Shen Genlian. Ms. Shen Genlian and
Mr. Zhou Jun are wife and husband. Accordingly, each of Ms.
Shen Genlian and Mr. Zhou Jun is deemed to be interested in
the said 269,960,400 and 89,986,800 Shares (in aggregate
359,947,200 Shares) under the SFO.
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(ii) Long position in the ordinary shares of

associated corporations

Name of Director

EEnA
Ms. Shen Genlian (Note 1)
R E L (K 77F1)

Mr. Zhou Jun (Note 1)
B Bk e (B aET)

Ms. Shen Genlian (Note 2)

MRBEBL L (Hat2)

Mr. Zhou Jun (Note 2)
BB e & (Bt 2)

Name of associated
corporation

HBEE AR

Perfect Angle

Perfect Angle

Huanlong Lixin

Huanlong Lixin
IRBESL R
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Capacity/Nature

Bt M=

Founder of a
discretionary trust
RHEEFEZA

Interest of spouse
Aic 48 # 2%

Interest in a controlled
corporation/interest
of spouse

NEEEEEZR
Bic 48 # &=

Interest of spouse

(R ¥

Number of
Shares or
registered
capital held/
interested in
¥E/BEH
EEHRMORT
mELAHE

100

100

RMB10,000

A K #10,0007T

RMB10,000
A K #10,0007T
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Notes:

1. Perfect Angle is holding 269,960,400 Shares. Perfect Angle
is directly and wholly owned by Vistra Trust, the trustee of the
SGL Trust. The SGL Trust is an irrevocable discretionary trust
established by Fame Attain, which is wholly-owned by Ms.
Shen Genlian, as the settlor. The beneficiaries of the SGL Trust
are Ms. Shen Genlian and the children of Ms. Shen Genlian.
Ms. Shen Genlian and Mr. Zhou Jun are wife and husband.
Accordingly, Perfect Angle is a holding company and an
associated corporation of the Company, and each of Ms. Shen
Genlian and Mr. Zhou Jun is deemed to be interested in the said
shares of the associated corporation under the SFO.

2. Huanlong Lixin is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, the equity interest of which is held as to 99% by
Huanlong Funeng, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and 1% by Huanlong Industrial Group Co., Ltd* ((REE T ¥ 5B E
R ‘A 7)), respectively. Huanlong Industrial Group Co., Ltd* (3R &
TE%EBEBRAA)is held as to 75% by Ms. Shen Genlian and
25% by Mr. Zhou, respectively. Ms. Shen Genlian and Mr. Zhou
Jun are wife and husband. Accordingly, Huanlong Lixin is an
associated corporation of the Company, and each of Ms. Shen
Genlian and Mr. Zhou Jun is deemed to be interested in the
equity interest of the associated corporation under the SFO.

Save as disclosed in the foregoing, as at 31 December 2021,
none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their
respective close associates had any interests or short positions
in any Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to
the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the
year under review or subsisting at the end of the year under review
are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

On 9 December 2021, a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the
Shareholders, under which, options may be granted to any Eligible
Participants (as defined below) to subscribe for the Shares
subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the Share Option
Scheme. The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as
an incentive to the Directors and the Eligible Participants.
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The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible
Participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with the view to achieving the following objectives: (i)
motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attracting and
retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going business relationships
with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option
to subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine to the following persons (the “Eligible Participants”):
(i) any full-time or part-time employee of any member of the
Group; (ii) any consultant or adviser of any member of the
Group; (iii) any Director (including executive, non-executive
or independent non-executive Directors) of any member of
the Group; (iv) any substantial shareholder of any member of
the Group; and (v) any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider of any member of
the Group. The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant
of any option shall be determined by the Board (or as the case
may be, where required under the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors) from time to time on the basis of
the participant’s contribution or potential contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company) to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
48,000,000 Shares, being 10% of the total number of the Shares
in issue as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other scheme of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of the
Shares in issue for the time being. Any further grant of options
in excess of the 1% limit shall be subject to the Shareholders’
approval in general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.
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An offer for the grant of option must be accepted within seven
days from the offer date. Options granted shall be taken up upon
payment of HK$1.00 as consideration for the grant of option.
Options may be exercised at any time from the date which option
is deemed to be granted and accepted and expired on the date
as the Board in its absolute discretion determine and which shall
not exceed a period of 10 years from the date on which the share
options are deemed to be granted and accepted but subject to
the provisions for early termination thereof contained in the Share
Option Scheme.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be determined by the Board and shall not be less
than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing from 9 December 2021. No share
option has been granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption up to the date of this annual report.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
48,000,000, representing approximately 9.93% of the issued
Shares as at the date of this annual report.

Other than the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2021 or subsisting at the end of the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Details of retirement benefit plans of the Group during the
year under review are set out in note 2.20 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the Directors are aware,
the interest and short positions of the persons, other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company, in the Shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO and which fell to
be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO are as follows:

Name Capacity/Nature

®nE/EB B HH

Beneficial owner
Em#EAA

Perfect Angle

Beneficial owner
EmBEAA

Wonderful Advisor

Trustee
ZFEA

Vistra Trust (Note) (4 7F)

Note: Vistra Trust is the trustee of the SGL Trust and ZJ Trust and holds
100% issued share capital of both Perfect Angle and Wonderful
Advisor, thus Vistra Trust is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by Perfect Angle and Wonderful Advisor for the
purpose of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed under the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, at no time during
the year under review was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debts securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of
corporate governance. Particulars of the Company’s corporate
governance practices are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 17 to 34 of this annual report.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements, there were no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts that are significant in
relation to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiary was a party and in which a Director or his/
her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the year ended 31
December 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN SOLE SPONSOR
AND INTERMEDIARIES

CMBC International Capital Limited was the sole sponsor
(the “Sole Sponsor”) for the Global Offering and the Listing.
The Sole Sponsor, Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited, Conyers
Dill & Pearman, Loogn & Yeung and SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited were appointed as the Compliance Adviser, auditors,
legal advisers as to Cayman lIsland laws, legal advisers as to
Hong Kong laws and internal control consultant of the Company,
respectively, after the Listing.

Earn Talent International Limited, a Hong Kong company
owned by Ms. Shen Genlian and Mr. Zhou Jun as to 50% and
50%, opened a securities account in Forwin Securities Group
Limited, one of the underwriters in the Global Offering, for trading
of securities, and paid service fees and commissions to Forwin
Securities Group Limited in each transaction of securities during
the year under review. Perfect Angle opened a securities account
in CMBC Securities Company Limited, the Stabilising Manager (as
defined in the Prospectus) to deposit the Shares of the Company
therein.

Save as: (a) the fees in relation to the services after the
Listing and the transactions as disclosed above; and (b) the listing
expense in relation to the Listing, there was no transactions
between (i) the Company, its Controlling Shareholders (as
defined in the Prospectus in respect of the Global Offering and
the Listing), subsidiaries, Directors, Senior Management or their
respective associates; (ii) any of (aa) the Sole Sponsor, (bb) any
of the intermediaries (including the Sole Global Coordinator,
the Joint Bookrunners, the Joint Lead Managers, underwriting
syndicate members, non-syndicate sub-placing agents and
distributors (both terms were defined in the Prospectus)) involved
in the placing, distribution or underwriting of the Global Offering or
(cc) any of the placees under the International Placing (as defined
in the Prospectus) (including the ultimate beneficial owners,
subsidiaries, directors senior management or the respective
associates of the parties referred to in (aa), (bb) and (cc)); and (iii)
consultants or advisers involved in the application of the Listing,
commencing from the first day of the financial year 2021 and
ending on the date of this annual report.
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COMPETING INTEREST

Apart from the Group's business, none of the Director,
the controlling shareholders or any of their respective close
associates was engaged in or had any interest in any business
that competes or may compete with the principal business of the
Group, which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules, or has any other conflict of interest with the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this annual report.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Ms. Shen Genlian and Mr. Zhou Jun (the “Covenantors”)
entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-Competition”) on 9 December 2021 in favour of the
Company (for itself and for the benefit of each other member
of the Group), pursuant to that they will not directly or indirectly
participate in, or hold any right or interest, or otherwise be
involved in any business which may be in competition with
the business of the Group during the period that the Deed of
Non-Competition remains effective.

The Company has received the annual confirmation
of the Covenantors in respect of their compliance with the
non-competition undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The independent non-executive Directors also reviewed the
Covenantors’ compliance with the non-competition undertakings.
The independent non-executive Directors confirmed that
the Covenantors were not in breach of the non-competition
undertakings during 31 December 2021.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Shares were not listed during the year ended 31
December 2021 and no purchase, sale or redemption of the
Shares could be made by the Company until 11 January 2022,
the date when the Shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares. If
the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.

CONNECTED AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions of the Group made during the
year ended 31 December 2021 were disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year under review, there was no connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which are required to
comply with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance, to which the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTRACTS BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND
ITS CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save as the section headed "Connected and Related
Transactions" above and note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, there is no contract of significance whether for
provision of service or otherwise, between the Company or any
of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders or any of the
Controlling Shareholders’ subsidiaries at any time during the year
under review.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the aggregate sales attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
16.1% of the Group’s total sales for the year and the sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to approximately
3.7%. The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 81.0% of the
Group’s total purchases for the year and the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 49.5%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder
which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any interest in
the share capital of any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of
this annual report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Yunchen,
Mr. Zhang Shenjin and Mr. Ip Wang Hoi. This 2021 annual report
has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited, the auditors of the
Company, will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming
AGM of the Company and be eligible to offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to be
held on 22 June 2022 to seek the Shareholders’ approval on the
reappointment of Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditors
of the Company until the conclusion of the next AGM and to
authorise the Board to fix their remuneration.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will hold the AGM on Wednesday. 22 June
2022. A notice convening the AGM will be published and
despatched to Shareholders in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 17 June 2022 to Wednesday, 22 June 2022 (both days
inclusive), for the purpose of determining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the AGM scheduled to be held on Wednesday, 22 June
2022. The record date will be Wednesday, 22 June 2022. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 16 June 2022.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On the Listing Date, the Company issued 114,200,000 Shares
at an offer price of HK$1.22 per Share in the Global Offering and
the Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
In addition, the over-allotment option granted by the Company to
the International Underwriters (as defined in the Prospectus) was
partially exercised and the Company further issued 3,442,000
Shares, representing approximately 3.0% of the number of Shares
of the Company initially offered at HK$1.22.

Save as disclosed above, no other significant events of the
Group occurred after 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this

annual report.

On behalf of the Board

Shen Genlian
CHAIRPERSON

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R BETRE

Grant Thornton

H 5]
To the members of Vanov Holdings Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vanov
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 67 to 161, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that,
judgment,
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

in our professional
were of most significance in our audit of the

B ZBARE

HEELEE

HREZZRDESREZEHE wi\%ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ
?’\ﬁﬁi‘%#&iéﬁﬁﬁiﬁ—ﬁiﬁfiﬁ%ﬁ FNEZ
B Ei*/\ﬁﬂ%#&i%&ﬂjE%ﬁﬁvﬁfiaxﬁ$lﬁ° &
ErEHRZEETHREHEBNER -

these matters.

Revenue recognition for sales of papermaking felts

HEEREBENRERR

Refer to Notes 2.16 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements

BB B IRLN E2.1684 »

Key Audit Matter
HREREE

Revenue principally comprises revenue from the design,
manufacture and sales of papermaking felts.
WRTZaERt HEREHEERERTEKRE -

Sales of papermaking felts are recognised when control of
the goods has been transferred to the customers, being at
the point in time when the goods are delivered.
ERERNHENEMNEFEERERTR (RN EmE)
FLATERR ©

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key audit
matter because of its significance to the Group and
revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the
Group, therefore it is a significant audit risk area.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENBERNMEERRERSE

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included:

EEAHMRERANERERF S

* obtaining an understanding of the processes and internal
control in relation to recognition of revenue from sales of
papermaking felts;

s THRHEEREURHRAR SN ERE KA FEE

* assessing the appropriateness of judgment made by
management on revenue recognition on the sales of
papermaking felts by reviewing the sales contracts, on a
sample basis, with reference to HKFRS 15;

s Z2BEBVBRSERNE1SHEHMESHEESH - UEME
ERERAHEEREBREaRMELNABESRE

» testing the revenue recognised from sales of papermaking
felts, on a sample basis, against sales contracts or orders,
and customer acknowledgement of delivery and installation
to evaluate whether the control of the papermaking felts
has passed to the customers;

s HMEHREESAHXTENBRENRINRZEERN(AE
HEERERONEHESEEBRREER) NAFAHEEE
MEH AT R W 5

« performing analysis of revenue, gross profit trend and their
fluctuation; and

- offlkE - ENBEREKE: R

* assessing the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure with
respect to revenue recognised.

- B BEEERKEHRIBAELORERTRES -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B R BETRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 R WRE SR ERT G

MEELSEGE)

Refer to Notes 2.9, 18 and 35.4 to the consolidated financial statements

R E M ERENF2.9 - 18K35.4 -

Key Audit Matter
HREREE

The Group’s net trade receivables amounting to
approximately RMB132,369,000 has been net off with
lifetime expected credit losses (“ECL”) on trade receivables
amounted to approximately RMB3,639,000 as at 31
December 2021.

M2021512A31H - ESENEZFRERKARBFEHRA
[£%132,369,000T - EE MK EZEKWKRIEN = HEHE
EEBER(REBEEREE] XA KS,639,0007T -

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial position
and the involvement of subjective judgement and
management estimates in evaluating ECL of the Group’s
trade receivables at the end of the reporting period.
BHORKZABENRENGEEESHRERARERFE
ARBZRKZESE BEXENESMBRABEALN M
R EEERBREHARNESRURFEEREEESE
8 & B T2 8 9 3 8 A T Ko fik 5T o
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENBERNMEERRERSE

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:
EETHESRRRBRENENEZREF B

* obtaining an understanding of management’s processes
and internal control regarding the collection and the
assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables;

e THEBEKDEZRERBRENEARERADEZRE UL
B 5 e WK IE 7] 7 B Y4 H 8 RE A

« testing the accuracy of the trade receivables ageing
analysis, on a sample basis, by checking to the source
documents;

s RERGXH  UBBEAREZIRERENKRKR TS
R

» evaluating the management’s assessment on the ECL
of trade receivables, including their identification of
credit-impaired receivables and the reasonableness of
management’s grouping of the remaining trade receivables
into different categories in the provision matrix, and the
basis of estimated loss rates applied in each category
in the provision matrix, with reference to the historical
payment records, public available information and credit
history of the Group’s customers and the correspondence
with customers; and

- Z2RBAEANKRZHE  2RAAGEHNNUE EXBEEENE
B kBB AT REEERESHERFIBEGRE
EEBFEMNAS BEEEEERENERKIE BEE

EEREEMREBBEREANTREERNATRNEZ S EK

REDHE URBEEEANZ AR BESEEN GG EE

&

« Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables to the consolidated
financial statements.

- AERSAVBRERMBEZIEUGKBEREFGELORE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the 2021 annual
report of the Company, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

B ZBARE

Hitv &R

ExAHEMENBRE HMEHNERE BEAQF
021 HANABEN  ETEREAVBREK
BEENZBERE

FHRGEAMBBRRONBEELT SR EMER
ENTEUZEEHMERNBRETANANERTS

RESHEEWBREANERNS  EFENEED
MEAMER EASEHEMERNERELES MK
BEAIEEREREMTHRNBALEERER
XErERFEBEANERRML - ERBEZFEHNTHI
fE MEEZERREMERTFES RERRM - A
EERENERSE -HRUAME  SFLEEMBESE
I8 o

EERGAMBERARBENER

REESGHDARRBOEARNBREENRE
BRAAKPORBERT EFAREMUARMS
BEOBARNBRE TAHKRABL BN
S RV XL LRV LGRS
GEES PP

KRG EHBEHRRE  EFFAENE EEE
SERENRN RERBATEERHISERLE
MER UTHEAHELLEREAER RIEFH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R BETRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagements and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

» obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

» evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

* conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

» evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

» obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, action taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

B ZBARE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R BETRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11th Floor, Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

30 March 2022

Lau Kwong Kei
Practising Certificate No.: P07578
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERakEtEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 220216127318 L FE

2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 AR TR AR®T T
Revenue W 3= 4 213,668 182,759
Cost of sales Fi K-S (100,046) (83,140)
Gross profit E A 113,622 99,619
Other income H M A 5 5,509 6,025
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (19,855) (17,764)
Administrative and other operating THREEMEERS
expenses (31,587) (32,145)
Finance costs B 15 pX 2R 6 (8,229) (7,241)
Profit before income tax & Fir 18 Bt Al & A 7 59,460 48,494
Income tax expense S B X 8 (8,770) (7,481)
Profit and total comprehensive FREAIREZEKR LR
income for the year 50,690 41,013
Profit and total comprehensive DT EFEMREFRZ2E K
income attributable to: wmE
Equity holders of the Company ARalE=FEA 50,136 40,517
Non-controlling interests FEE R 554 496
50,690 41,013
Earnings per share attributable to ZAATRZBFEEAELERERN
equity holders of the Company
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EAXAR#EEFEARESD) 10 13.71 11.08
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e ISR R

As at 31 December 2021 742021412 A31H

2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 AR T ARBT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BRE R 12 92,360 72,694
Investment property ‘EME 13 40,952 —
Land lease prepayment T E B FRIA 15 5,518 5,856
Intangible assets B EE 16 61,341 51,108
Prepayment of acquisition for property, WE¥W% - ME KR HE M
plant and equipment and intangible mIEE/NEMNKRIE
assets 35,784 22,593
Deposit R& 2,100 2,100
Deferred tax assets BRI EE 26 720 1,086
238,775 155,437
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 11,903 10,034
Trade and other receivables B 5 & Hith fE W 5118 18 153,477 141,111
Amounts due from related parties JiE U5 8 B 5 RIR 33(c) — 205
Restricted bank deposit SRR FISRITIE R 19 — 1,000
Cash and cash equivalent RekBEeEEY 19 12,609 29,775
177,989 182,125
Current liabilities mEEE
Contract liabilities SHEE 20 512 739
Trade and other payables B 5 & H it g~ A 21 58,793 47,221
Lease liabilities HEBE 22 1,338 1,545
Amount due to a related party JE 1) A Bg 5 SR IE 33(c) 20 27
Discounted bills financing BRI EERmE 23 3,821 —
Bank borrowings RITE 24 105,000 115,000
Other borrowing H & R 25 8,326 —
Income tax payable &1 ET 15 7,483 6,586
185,293 171,118
Net current (liabilities)/assets hRE(BE) BEEFE (7,304) 11,007
Total assets less current liabilities R EER B EE 231,471 166,444
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR A MR R

As at 31 December 2021 72021412 A31H

2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 AR TR AR®T T
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Lease liabilities HE&AE 22 — 1,338
Other borrowing H b 18 3 25 14,208 —
Deferred tax liabilities iR IE 7 T B F 26 2,281 814
16,489 2,152
Net assets EEFE 214,982 164,292
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital & 7R 27 1 1
Reserves 15 28 212,548 162,412
Equity attributable to equity holders of 72 & # 25 #5 A A fE (5 #£ 25
the Company 212,549 162,413
Non-controlling interests FEE AR 72 2,433 1,879
Total equity B 214,982 164,292
The notes on pages 73 to 161 are an integral part of these FT3E1MEFTH MM T BN U FE L 05 H =R
consolidated financial statements. —® o
The consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 161 were E6TR161H M 47 & B 7% M & 02022433300 &K &
approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2022 and were EFe2ff WHATATRAEE:

signed on its behalf.

Shen Genlian Xie Zongguo
AR E SR E
Director Director

EFE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%2021F12A31H L F/Z

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FRREEREAES
Non-
Share Capital Statutory Retained controlling
capital Reserve* Reserve* Profits* Subtotal interests Total
g EARET  EERET RERRN Nt FERES @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR AR¥®TR ARETR AR%FTR ARET:R
(Note 28) (Note 28)
(Wit28) (Hi28)

As at 1 January 2020 ®2020%151A 1 43,841 23,902 54,152 121,896 1,383 123,279
Profit and total comprehensive ENEFRE2HNE

income for the year B — — — 40,517 40,517 496 41,013
Transfer L — - 5,001 (5,001) - — —

As at 31 December 2020 and 7820205125318 &

1 January 2021 2021F151A 1 43,841 28,903 89,668 162,413 1,879 164,292
Profit and total comprehensive ~ FREFI R 2E WK%
income for the year B — — — 50,136 50,136 554 50,690
Transfer E — — 4,409 (4,409) = = =
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%12831H 1 43,841 33,312 135,395 212,549 2,433 214,982
* The reserves accounts comprise the Group’s reserves of * FEREEREAMBMRARANAEERZEEARR
RMB$212,548,000 (2020: RMB$162,412,000) in the consolidated 212,548,000t (20204 : A R #5162,412,0007T) °

statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 220216127318 L FE

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Operating activities RETEE
Profit before income tax W& AT 15 % Al & A 59,460 48,494
Adjustments for: HTINSIBEL AR :
Amortisation of intangible assets B = 2,075 1,261
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BELRSZENE
equipment 9,724 9,141
Depreciation of investment property KEYENE 164 —
Depreciation of land lease THHEERNREBERTE
prepayment 338 338
Loss on disposal of property, plant LEME BMELLZBEEE
and equipment 610 9
Reversal of provisions for inventories 17 & # 5 # [0 (475) (750)
(Reversal of provision)/Provision for EEBRR(BERRD) BE
legal claim (358) 1,303
(Reversal of)/Provision of allowance & 5 & It k18 & & Ik = &
on trade and bills receivables, net (BERE) BiEFE (2) 1,456
Provision for warranty REBE 4,115 3,928
Interest income FEWA (151) (191)
Rent concessions HEER = (387)
Finance costs B 75 K 2N 8,229 7,241
Operating cash flows before working & :&E & © & E A1 H)
capital changes KER PR = 83,729 71,843
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories & GEm,md (1,394) 1,979
Increase in trade and other receivables 2 5 N H {ib J& Y ZX I8 18 fn (11,700) (13,682)
Decrease in amounts due from related & U& 28 Bt 75 5K 18 8 2
parties 205 3,184
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other & 5 K H i f&  ZIB L i1/
payables Rk 2) 13,881 (3,734)
(Decrease)/Increase in contract AR Aa’ECRD), 1Em
liabilities (227) 28
Decrease in amount due to a related & {5 B B 5 3% 18 g >
party (7) (3)
Cash generated from operations KEMERE 84,487 59,615
Income tax paid B FTEH (6,040) (4,984)
Net cash generated from operating E& FEB B BHEFHE
activities 78,447 54,631
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= =]
FmERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 220216127318 L FE

2021 2020
20215 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 AR T AR®T T

Investing activities REEH
Acquisition of property, plant and WEYE  BERZE

equipment (57,508) (30,247)
Acquisition of intangible assets W EEEAE (12,308) (8,214)
Interest received B 47 B 151 191
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BMEREKBERE

plant and equipment 150 23
Decrease in restricted bank deposit 2 BRI 8R 17 17 30 8 4 1,000 —
Net cash used in investing activities KEZBHTHE % FEE (68,515) (38,247)
Financing activities mESEE
Proceeds of bank borrowings RITERTERIEA 105,000 115,000
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEN (115,000) (117,000)
Repayment of other borrowings 88 Kb g 3K (4,415) —
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEafE (1,545) (1,282)
Interest paid =EENEES) (8,229) (7,230)
Listing expenses paid B EmAL (6,730) (4,086)
Increase/(Decrease) in discounted BRI ZERmERN O D)

bills financing 3,821 (450)
Net cash used in from financing G &G B PR & F 5

activities (27,098) (15,048)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRBESEEYORL) #Em

and cash equivalents b= (17,166) 1,336
Cash and cash equivalents at FUHRERRESEZEY

beginning of year 29,775 28,439
Cash and cash equivalents atend EFRBEERELSEEY

of year 19 12,609 29,775
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 General information

Vanov Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 November 2018
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act, Cap.22 (Act 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and
its headquarter is situated at No.519, Section 2, Xinhua
Avenue, Chengdu Strait Science and Technology Industry
Development Park, Wenjiang District, Chengdu, Sichuan
Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design,
manufacture and sales of papermaking felts.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Perfect
Angle Limited (“Perfect Angle”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The Company’s
ultimate controlling parties are Ms. Shen Genlian (“Ms.
Shen”) and Mr. Zhou Jun (“Mr. Zhou”), the Spouse of Ms.
Shen (together, the “Controlling Shareholders”).

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
as detailed in the section headed “History, Reorganisation
and Corporate Structure” to the Company’s prospectus
dated 29 December 2021 (the “Prospectus”), the
Company became the holding company of the companies
now comprising the Group on 13 August 2019.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 11 January 2022.

These consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 were approved for issue by the
board of directors (the “Board”) on 30 March 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

21 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(*HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. The consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”).

The Group had net current liabilities of approximately
RMB7,304,000 as of 31 December 2021. In view of the
net current liabilities position as of 31 December 2021,
the directors have given careful consideration to the
future liquidity and performance of the Group and its
available sources of finance in assessing whether the
Group will have sufficient financial resources to continue
as a going concern.

Having considered (i) the cash inflow from operations;
(ii) the refinancing of bank borrowings upon their expiry
by drawing down new bank borrowings; and (iii) the
net proceeds of HK$92.8 million, through the global
offering of the shares of the Company and the listing of
its shares on the Stock Exchange on 11 January 2022,
and HK$4.2 million upon partial exercise of the over-
allotment option granted by the Company on 31 January
2022, the directors are satisfied that the Group is able to
meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due for the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements has been prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
restate the values of assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise
and to reclassify non-current assets as current assets.
The consolidated financial statements does not include
any adjustments that would result from the failure of the
Group to continue in business as a going concern.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

21 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of this consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented in
the consolidated financial statements, unless otherwise
stated. The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the
impacts on the Group’s financial statements, if any, are
disclosed in Note 2.2.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis.

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared
on the historical cost basis. The consolidated financial
statements is presented in RMB, which is also the
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge and judgment
of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXEHBEBRE(E)

2.2 Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs 22 RAFIRKBBINEBMBREE

Amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual
periods beginning on 1 January 2021

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following amended HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group’s operations
and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 January
2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Reform — Phase 2

In addition, on 1 January 2020, the Group has early
applied Amendments to HKFRS 16 “COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions” and “COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021” which is mandatorily
effective for the Group for the financial year beginning on
or after 1 April 2021.

Except for those mentioned below, the adoption of the
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the
results and financial position for the current and prior
periods have been prepared and presented.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 “COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions” and Amendment fo HKFRS 16
“COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30
June 2021”

The amendments to HKFRS 16 only apply to lessee
accounting and have no effect on lessor accounting.
The amendments provide a practical expedient that
allows a lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate whether
certain qualifying rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 (“COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions”) are lease modification and, instead,
account for those rent concessions as if they were not
lease modifications.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXEHBEBRE(E)

2.2 Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs 22 RAFTREETNEBM K REER

(Continued)

Amended HKFRSs that are effective for
annual periods beginning on 1 January 2021
(Continued)

Amendment fo HKFRS 16 “COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions” and Amendment to HKFRS 16
“COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30
June 2021” (Continued)

The practical expedient is only applicable to COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions and only if all of the following
conditions are met:

(@) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

(b) any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022
(for example, a rent concession would meet this
condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or
before 30 June 2022 and increased lease payments
that extend beyond 30 June 2022); and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

The Group has elected to early adopt the above
amendments and applies the practical expedient to all
qualifying COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions granted
to the Group throughout the years.

Consequently, rent concessions received have been
recognised RMB387,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020 and nil for the year ended 31 December 2021 as
negative variable lease payments in profit or loss in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers those
payments occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs
(Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amended standards, amendments and interpretations
(“new and amended HKFRSs”) which have been issued
but not yet effective:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and

related amendments?

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework*
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?
Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)2
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single

Transaction?

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use!

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract!

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards 2018—
2020!

Merger Accounting for

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised) Common Control
Combination*
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXEHBEBRE(E)

2.2 Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs 22 RAFTREETNEBM K REER

(Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

9 Effective date not yet determined

4 Effective for business combination/common control
combination for which the acquisition/combination date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2022

The directors anticipate that all of the new and amended
HKFRSs will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy
for the first period beginning after the effective date of the
new and amended HKFRSs. Except for those mentioned
below, other new and amended HKFRSs are not expected
to have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
material accounting policy information instead of
significant accounting policies in its financial statements.
The amendments also provide some guidance on how
material policy information are being identified and
provide some examples of when accounting policy
information is likely to be material.

In March 2021, HKICPA issued HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Making Materiality Judgements” to provide
entities with non-mandatory guidance on how to make
materiality judgements when preparing their general
purpose financial statements in accordance with HKFRS.
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 was subsequently revised
to provide guidance and examples on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs

(Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
are applied prospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
Except for the disclosures of accounting policies in Note 2
may need to be revised to cope with the above changes,
the directors expect that the amendments have no other
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction”

The amendments clarify that the initial recognition
exemption of deferred tax in HKAS 12 does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as lease contracts that
give rise to the recognition of a lease liability and the
corresponding right-of-use assets. Instead, entities are
required to recognise the related deferred tax asset and
liability on initial recognition, with the recognition of any
deferred tax asset being subject to the recoverability
criteria in HKAS 12. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January
2023. Earlier application is permitted. The directors
expect that the amendments have no other material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXEHBEBRE(E)

2.3 Basis of consolidation 23 EOFE%E

The consolidated financial statements incorporates
the financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. Subsidiaries are entities
controlled by the Group.

The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power over the entity, only
substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the Group
and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements
from the date it gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary. Intra-group
transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses
on transactions between group companies are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed
on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested
for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have
been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency
with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me

P ISR M A

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

24

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

In the Company’s statements of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included in
a disposal group. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the reporting date. All dividends whether
received out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition
profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements is presented
in RMB, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

In the individual financial statements of the combined
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the reporting
date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated (i.e. only translated using the exchange rate
at the transaction date).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into RMB.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into RMB
at the closing rates at the reporting date. Income and
expenses have been converted into the RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction-
in-progress as described below) are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost
(other than cost of right-of-use assets as described in
Note 2.13) includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees. Construction in progress
is classified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EREHHEME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 25 ¥ BERRKHEE)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided
to write off the cost less their residual values, if any,
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Building 20 years or shorter of the
lease term

Leasehold improvements 5 years or shorter of the
lease term

Plant and machinery 5-12 years

Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Accounting policy for depreciation of right-of-use assets
is set out in Note 2.13.

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
the profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance, are
charged to the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see Note 2.13)
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

Such properties are measured initially at cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis over the expected
useful life and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value. The principal expected useful life for this
purpose are as follows:
Building 20 years

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and
research and development activities

Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are
available for use. The following useful lives are applied:

Computer software
Capitalised development
costs

5 years
10 years
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e M HRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

and research and development activities
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives (i.e.
trademarks) are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

Intangible assets, with finite and indefinite useful lives,
are tested for impairment as described below in Note
2.19.

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed
in profit or loss as they occur. Costs that are directly
attributable to development activities are recognised
as intangible assets provided they meet the following
recognition requirements:

— demonstration of technical feasibility of the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

— there is intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

— the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset
is demonstrated;

— the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

— sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

— the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
can be reliably measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
and research and development activities
(Continued)

Research and development costs (Continued)

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on
development activities along with an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads. The costs of development of
internally generated software, products or knowhow
that meet the above recognition criteria are recognised
as intangible assets. They are subject to the same
subsequent measurement method as acquired intangible
assets.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.

Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or when the financial asset and substantially all of its
risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Financial assets

Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component and are measured at
the transaction price in accordance with HKFRS 15, all
financial assets are initially measured at fair value, in
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"), plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

— amortised cost;
— FVTPL; or

— fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”).

The classification is determined by both the entity’s
business model for managing the financial asset; and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets
that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within
finance costs, or other income, except for expected
credit losses (“ECL") of trade and bills receivables which
is presented within administrative and other operating
expenses.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

— they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and collect its
contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EREHHEME(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued) 28 EMIA(E)
Subsequent measurement of financial assets EHEENEETE(E)
(Continued)
Debt investments (Continued) EBETA(E)
Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued) REHEKAFENEREE(B)
After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised RYIEERE ZEeREEFRERARN
cost using the effective interest method. Interest income EEIRBHEHK AT E - REZSTEREE
from these financial assets is included in other income E’J BB A FE AR & A E M A o i Bh
in profit or loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect R M T EM - BIBGA A 2B TEr o A&
of discounting is immaterial. The Group’s trade and other lmfﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬂfﬂﬁlmlﬁ JiE s BA B 5 3R IE
receivables, amounts due from related parties, restricted XEHBTERUALRB 2 LRBE2FE 4@ 2|
bank deposit and cash and cash equivalent fall into this BRiLEemMIA-

category of financial instruments.

Financial liabilities THERE

Classification and measurement of financial THEERNSERFE

liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank borrowings, AEEBSRHEBERIERITER  HAER
other borrowing, lease liabilities, trade and other HEEBE EHSREMEMNRIE  EBHEE
payables, amount due to a related party and discounted THRIBERBEZERE -

bills financing.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are initially cREE(HEAGRIN NFRATEFE
measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted MUnBER) MR IR AETHE -

for transaction costs.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease e 2RmEABEMHEEEERINERER
liabilities) are measured at amortised cost using the ME SRR BEHK AT = -
effective interest method.

All interest-related charges are included within finance FrIBEMBHEAERAFAMBRRE -
costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in Note HEBEMN BRI N FE213 -
2.13.
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e M HRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

date.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,

using the effective interest method.

2.9 Impairment of financial assets

HKFRS 9’s impairment requirements use forward-
looking information to recognise ECL — the “ECL model”.
Instruments within the scope included loans and other
debt-type financial assets measured at amortised cost
and trade receivables recognised and measured under

HKFRS 15.

The Group considers a broader range of information when
assessing credit risk and measuring ECL, including past
events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable
forecasts that affect the expected collectability of the

future cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is

made between:

— financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition

or that have low credit risk (“Stage 1”) and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXEHBEBRE(E)

2.9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 29 eMEERE(E)

— financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
and whose credit risk is not low (“Stage 2”).

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have objective
evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1 category
while “lifetime ECL” are recognised for the Stage 2
category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

Trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL and recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date.
These are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash
flows, considering the potential for default at any point
during the life of the financial assets. In calculating the
ECL, the Group has established a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings and/or individually assessed for
debtors with significant balances, that is based on its
historical credit loss experience and external indicators,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due.

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for other
receivables equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increase in the likelihood of risk of
default occurring since initial recognition.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

29 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost (Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial assets at
the reporting date with the risk of default occurring on
the financial assets at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in regulatory,
business, financial, economic conditions or
technology environment that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations; and

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXEHBEBRE(E)

2.9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 29 eWMEEREE)

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the end of each
reporting period. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if it has a low risk of default, the borrower
has strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when (i) information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group); (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past
due.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost are set out in Note 35.4.

210 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all cost of
purchase and, where applicable, other costs that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition, and is determined by using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated cost of completion and applicable
selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

211 Cash and cash equivalents and restricted

bank deposit

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are included in
“restricted bank deposit” of the consolidated statements
of financial position. Restricted bank deposit are excluded
from cash and cash equivalents.

212 Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see Note 2.16). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see Note 2.8).

213 Lease

Definition of a lease

At inception of a contract, the Group considers whether
a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as
‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right
to use an identified asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply
this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract
meets three key evaluations which are whether:

— the contracts contains an identified asset, which is
either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly
specified by being identified at the time the asset is
made available to the Group;

— the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use, considering its rights
within the defined scope of the contract; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXEHBEBRE(E)

213 Lease (Continued) 23FE (&)

Definition of a lease (Continued)

— the Group has the right to direct the use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Group assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how
and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout
the period of use.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the consolidated
statements of financial position. The right-of-use asset
is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct
costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset at the end
of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance
of the lease commencement date (net of any lease
incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use asset on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-
use assets or the end of the lease term unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership at the end of
the lease term. The Group also assesses the right-of-use
asset for impairment when such indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

213 Lease (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee (Continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable payments based on an index or rate,
and amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be
reduced for lease payments made and increased for
interest cost on the lease liability. It is remeasured to
reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or if there
are changes in in-substance fixed payments.

For lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of modification. The
only exception is any rent concessions which arose
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and which satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of HKFRS 16 “Leases”. In such cases, the Group
took advantage of the practical expedient set out in
paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change
in consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit
and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to
zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases
using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising
a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these leases are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
month or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EREHHEME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

213 Lease (Continued) 23FE (&)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of
investment property have been included in property,
plant and equipment. The prepaid lease payments for
leasehold land are presented as “land lease prepayment”
under non-current assets.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessor

As a lessor, the Group classifies its leases as either
operating or finance leases.

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset, and classified as an
operating lease if it does not.

The Group also earns rental income from operating
leases of its investment properties. Rental income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

214 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

214 Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

215 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is recognised at the amount of consideration of shares
issued, after deducting any transaction costs associated
with the issuing of shares (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.

216 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods and services to customers in an amount that
reflect the consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
Specially, the Group uses a 5-step approach for revenue

recognition.

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXEHBEBRE(E)

216 Revenue recognition (Continued) 216 W= HERR (4B)

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

Control of the goods or services may be transferred over
time or at a point in time. Control of the goods or services
is transferred over time if:

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the entity’s performance as
the Group performs;

— the Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that customer controls as the Group performs;
or

— the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress toward complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or services.

Revenue from sales of papermaking felts products are
recognised at a point in time when the legal title of the
finished good is transferred and the Group has present
right to payment and the collection of the consideration
is probable. This is usually taken as the time when the
goods are delivered and the customer has accepted the
goods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXEHBEBRE(E)

216 Revenue recognition (Continued) 216 W R (8)

Sales-related warranties associated with papermaking
felts cannot be purchased separately and are served as
an assurance that the products sold comply with agreed-
upon specifications (i.e. assurance-type warranties).
Accordingly, the Group accounts for warranties in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.

Rental income from letting the Group’s investment
property is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis
using the effective interest rate method.

217 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that the grants are intended to
compensate. Government grants relating to the purchase
of assets are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

Government grants relating to income is presented
in gross under “Other income” in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

218 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

100 VANOV HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED HBREZRARA A

HEREUREMANEERNBERE LSS
BE YERMEEMRTARBEREBIRF
FRRB)NRE - it AKBEREEFE
SR EREITR[BEE  KARABBRIARE

EINRIERER -

R m o

B

HEAKSERENERSHNESKRAZHA
HIA B 405 TIARER o

MEBWAEBERN X IREHE L HIHER -

217 BT K

fird BE %0 & 32 40 4R 78 BT B K A8 A R - B
AEBEETHAMSEMSE  KEBRFH
BRmERAFEER -  BTEFTELE AR
TiRBENKARSEMTHRANESR
R - FHBEEENRFRINEEN
FHEBETHE AHBBRAINERX
EEENERAFRANEZPERER

HIRWARBHOBRFER IR GaERERE
fEEBERATEBBAIBERNGETES -

218 & F AR A

BRRAREL A ERRDER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXEHBEBRE(E)

LY FETEMEERE

219 Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets), investment property, intangible assets, land
lease prepayment and investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statements of financial position are subject to
impairment testing. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and that are not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that they are impaired. Others are tested
for impairment whenever there are indications that the
asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit
level.

Impairment loss is charged pro rata to the assets in the
cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less cost of disposal, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXEHBEBRE(E)

2.20 Employee benefits 220 EERA

Retirement benefits

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC based employees of the Group participate in
various defined contributions retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC under which the Group and the
PRC based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage of
the employees’ salaries, subject to a certain ceiling.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assure the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired PRC based employees payable under
the plans described above. Other than the monthly
contributions, the Group has no further obligation for the
payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits
of its employees. The assets of these plans are held
separately from those of the Group in independently
administrated funds managed by the PRC government.

The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXEHBEBRE(E)

2.21 Accounting for income taxes LAFEHETER

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense
in the profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
tax losses available to be carried forward as well as
other unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability
is settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

FriSH B4 E BB I8 R TR IA o

EHFSHEER /A ABERERBA K
AEREH (BRI E B RS A B B
FETHEERERENER  HERFR
R EN REEHEMBEE BB
ERBEAE EHHBREELABENAR

BEERBRBEGZEIARNBEANGEEH
BHREATEERABENREERELSEAR
ARMNEREZRFE - EERBRE—K
BREARRVERZRER -BEEHREE
ER-REMETHNERZE T&E
50 I8 85 18 A Ko Eth K B A B IR 4K R RE AR
AR RERBERT G M (BHEREERY
ERER)AFEEEITNREREZE K
AREABEERRBARBERSR

HERZEREXH(TEERRAM G
BAKER) RS ERNEENEE - A
TeRAELEHREERAE -

RMBRARNBREMEENERRER =
HHEIARELERBAGE  EHAKE TN
ZHEREZENRLD MEKEZRARED
&R AIIE R R B = BIBR SN e

BEERBERBEAHELIARLER
EMARENEEXBREEDRRERN
BERAE  BAKHE -

Annual Report 2021 £ 103



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2. EXEHBEBRE(E)

2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) LAFIBHRETRE(E)

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in the profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EREHHEME(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Related parties 22 @8R
For the purposes of these consolidated financial HAGEMGHREMS M TNIBERER -
statements, a party is considered to be related to the BIl =75 # #5745 B 7N & (] 4 fE =
Group if:
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that (@) ZAR—BATLTHZEATHEHRIK
person’s family and if that person: BB Bz AT
(i) has control or joint control over of the Group; (i) ¥I7Z& B F % f 4 sk [/ 1% H
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) SXEBEEATEN 3K
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) RAEBE X AEES AR FEERE
the Group or of a parent of the Group. B E o
(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following (b) ZAR—EEEAMTIIE

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the () ZBERAKAKEBERN—SENKE -
same group.

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) " HAEBAES BRNBEQAAK
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a EERA(HAE —SENKERN
member of a group of which the other entity is a HEANRIKEERR  r Mizs— B
member). BALEENKE) -

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) ZEBRASBEERBRE=ZFH
same third party. N - WG

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and (ivy —AERBAF=ZEEBNAERAALK
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. S—ERBRE=-EBHNBEQA -

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) ZEBDAASENEANEEE H
the benefit of employees of either the Group or EERAESSF MR B R
an entity related to the Group. mA A e

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZE B X (a)FT a5l Ay A 12 6l 3k
person identified in (a). & #2= l o

(vii)a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (Vi) R @)(I)FTHIMATHERBAEEKX
influence over the entity or is a member of the TR HRZEE(KEENG LA
key management personnel of the entity (or of a FEEEREKE -

parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(viii) the entity, or any member of a company of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

2.23 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM?”) for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components
and for their review of the performance of those
components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 3. BEET A RARK

JUDGMENTS

31 fEEF M E R 8RR

3.1 Sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Warranty provision

The Group provides warranty to certain customers. The
provision for warranty is estimated based on expected
warranty work to be performed for goods under the
warranty period and labor charges expected to be
incurred. As historical maintenance and service record
may not resemble the future maintenance and service
of the products sold, differences between the actual
amount and the estimated amount of this provision may
affect future profit or loss. The carrying amount of the
Group’s warranty provision at the end of each reporting
period is set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Estimation of impairment of trade and other
receivables

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 to determine
when a receivable is impaired. In making this estimation
and judgment, the Group evaluate, among other
factors, the ageing analysis of receivables, the financial
healthiness and collection history of the individual
debtors and expected future change of credit risks,
including the consideration of factors such as general
economy measure, existing market conditions and change
in macro-economic indicators, etc. at the end of each
reporting period as set out in note 35.4.

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade and other
receivables as at 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately RMB150,560,000 (2020: RMB135,509,000)
and ECL allowance amounted to approximately
RMB3,639,000 (2020: RMB5,724,000). Details of the
trade and other receivables are disclosed in Note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AEBEHRRELAEFTRER -GG
FRAMERNE BEEEE BL2HEAH
ERGERER - FESRERE ST @M K
FENEERABNEREEHREERRAE
Wt R BRI WA T

RERF

AEBRETEPRHEGRE - REBET
REREHALERETHEHRRETLHE
REFKEENLTERAMG - BRNBE
HENRBLCEARASEDE R ERN KK
MELRBAR  ZBEENBERSBEEG
RFERNERAESXERRER - A&
ERNEREARNRE R BREESRNE
BB WRME21

14 &t B 5 R B it J& W 7% 18 L 18

AEBEREEEM B HRELER BRI
78 E & U2 K TR I AT B ORL(E o 8 4 BfY FE35.4
Pre EER A RAGE  NEER
EHERFEH(EPERE) BB FIANKEK
DA ERIME AR MR RRE
BUARGEERBRONBHAARARED  2F=Z
BHEBREERR EETRAREBREE
SHPHERE -

R2021F128310 ' AEBE S K HbfEU
FIBEREMEE L A A RH150,560,0007T (2020
&£ A\ R#135,509,0007t) MEHEEE
B AE B4 B A R #3,639,0007T (20204 :
A R ¥5,724,0007T) - B 5 K& H b & U 5118
BB G B R KM =184 55 ©

Annual Report 2021 £ 107



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRME

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

3. e AR HE(E)

3.1 Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) 31 BT TFHBEENRR(E)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and investment property

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation for its property,
plant and equipment and investment property. The
estimates are based on the historical experience of the
actual economic lives of property, plant and equipment
and investment property of similar nature and functions.
Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives. Management will adjust the depreciation where
the useful lives are estimated to be different from the
previous estimates. Periodic reviews could result in a
change in useful lives and therefore depreciation expense
in future periods. The carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and investment property at the end of
each reporting period is set out in Notes 12 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Provision for inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amount of inventories
based on consideration of obsolescence of raw materials
and the net realisable value of finished goods. The
identification of inventory obsolescence and estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business require the
use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of inventories in the period
in which such estimate has been changed. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, reversal for inventories
of RMB475,000 (2020: reversal of RMB750,000) was
recognised. The carrying amount of inventories is set out
in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

3. e AR HE(E)

3.2 Critical accounting judgments 32 EHHE

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following accounting
judgments:

Current income tax

The Group is subject to Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) in
the PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining
the provision for EIT. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that we initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current income tax and deferred tax
provision in the period in which such determination is
made.

Research and development activities

Careful judgment by the Company’s management
is applied when deciding whether the recognition
requirements for development costs have been met.
This is necessary as the economic success of any
product development is uncertain and may be subject
to future technical problems at the time of recognition.
Judgments are based on the best information available at
the end of each reporting period. In addition, all internal
activities related to the research and development of new
products or know how are continuously monitored by the
Company’s management.
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B - EREXEBBIED  ZERRXHRFET
XN SERREEFEE XK ENHE ° 7%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B ERRME
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. RIS FBER

4.1 Revenue 4.1 W=

AEERFTERERNRGT  HERHEE -
AT RAKREFRNIREME D H WD

The Group was engaged in the design, manufacture and
sales of papermaking felts. An analysis of the Group'’s
revenue by products during the year is as follows:

B — 18] BF e & 7 A7 -

Recognised at a point in time:

2021 2020

2021F 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AR T T

Packaging papermaking felts BRBEREH 147,437 124,863
Specialty papermaking felts HFREERER 39,047 32,090
Printing papermaking felts Ef il 485 41 B 11,440 10,732
Household papermaking felts AR E AR E R 10,955 9,490
Pulp papermaking felts FIREREH 4,789 5,584
213,668 182,759

Remaining performance obligations

The following table includes revenue expected to
be recognised in the future related to performance
obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) is

F|6f /BB

T 5 8051 78 40 5 O 3R A I o B AT (o

DEITIMEHETH MR

as follows:
2021 2020
2021F 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Within one year —F RN 11,362 11,108
After one year but within two years —FRERFEA — 247
11,362 11,355
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

4. WERDMW2®/(E)

4.2 Segment information 4.2 5 BER

The Group is mainly engaged in the design, manufacture
and sales of papermaking felts in the PRC. Information
reported to the CODM (i.e. the board of directors) for
the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment focuses on the operating results of the Group
as a whole as the Group’s resources are integrated and
no discrete financial information is available.

No segment of assets and liabilities are presented as no
discrete financial information is available.

Geographical information

The following table sets out information on the
geographical locations of the Group’s revenue determined
based on geographical region of the customers.

AEETZETEREEAERNRS

HERHEE BRAKENERCES
BYEETABLUBER  UHAEBERS K
RRAFEMAETELERRE(HEES)
BENERETRAEEBENLLERE -

RIEBBILFEER  MT2INEER

58 -

F
a

=
-

1y B FH

TREINAEBARBERS it R E T UKD
I AL B & R o

2021 2020

202145 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREET T

The PRC i 204,010 175,171
Overseas NN 9,658 7,588
213,668 182,759

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all of the non-current
assets of the Group were located in the PRC.

Information about major customers

Since none of the Group’s sales to a single customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
information about major customers in accordance with
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” is presented.

R2021F 202012 A31H * REB KA
ERBDEEHMNRAE o

EHFTEEFHEHN

B & ERE £20214 2020412 A31
HEFEYEE —RFNHEEHEEAER
U 25 W10% 8k A - M AR 1B E S Bt
BHREERFESHEILE N BIZIBEAEE
BEHER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

5. OTHER INCOME 5. Hig A
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®ET T
Bank interest income BT F B A 151 191
Sales of scrap materials HEER 2,385 1,836
Government subsidies (note) BT 8 B (A7 ) 2,385 3,509
Rental income el A 175 —
Rent concessions HEeER — 387
Reversal of provision for legal claims ERBHRBERR

(Note 7(a)) (Ht it 7(a)) 358 —
Sundry income HMIEW A 55 102
5,509 6,025

Note: The amount represents unconditional government subsidies BtaF - ZRIERUWEH 5 RS E AT E R HEER

received from the local government authorities for the

purpose of research and development and supporting its

XRHEEEMG THOEEEBUSTHES -

operation.
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. B # A

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®ET T

Interest expenses on: UTFEESNFERX:
Discounted bills financing AR Z R E 44 —
Bank borrowings R ITE 6,795 7,194
Other borrowing H & R 1,287 —
Lease liabilities HEAE 103 47
8,229 7,241
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of land lease prepayment

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses

Depreciation of owned assets

Depreciation of right-of-use asset

Depreciation of investment property

Exchange losses, net

Listing expenses

Lease charges on short term leases

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

(Reversal of)/Provision of ECL allowance on
trade and bills receivables, net

(Reversal of provision)/Provision for legal
claim (note a)

Provision for warranty

Research and development costs

Reversal of provisions for inventories

Auditor’s remuneration

Rental income from investment property

Staff cost (including directors’
remuneration)

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Contributions to defined contribution plans
(note b)

7.

BR
=

&£

B A B

T ERMRIERE
EREAR/AXNEERA
BEEENE
EREEENE
BREMERE

BE 5L B 18 0% HR

EWmRAX
MHRENEERER
HENE BERREEBRE

B 5 RN IR KRR B
(BE), FHEEEBR
BEFE

ERAR(BEED), BE
(Htita)

& #m

Bt 2% Bk A<

FERBRED

% BURT B &

BREMEAESHRS KA

EIRAS(BEESFHH)

LE A

He IEBEMEMBEF
FEM KT EE R (A 2EDb)

A M RRME

BR it 1§ %t Al & 7

FRERANEMRHE GEA) AT &EHERE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AR®ETF T
2,075 1,261
338 338
61,808 51,743
8,080 7,762
1,644 1,379
164 =
231 613
3,245 6,394
337 216
610 9

(2) 1,456
(358) 1,303
4,115 3,928
7,049 5,681
(475) (750)
800 =
175 =
30,618 24,093
5,213 1,964
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

7. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (Continued)

Notes:

(a) A subsidiary of the Group, being the defendant, was involved in
litigation during the year ended 31 December 2020 in relation to
the dispute on construction of a factory of the Group. Based on
the advice of the Group’s legal advisers, the directors estimated
that the total potential claims payable to the claimant, being the
previous constructor, is approximately RMB1.9 million, which
included certain site preparation and construction works of
approximately RMBO0.6 million performed by the claimant (in
which the amount have been recognised as part of the additions
to the property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31
December 2020) and provision of legal claims of approximately
RMB1.3 million recognised in profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2020. On 16 July 2021, the court made the first-
instance judgement and no party had lodged an appeal to the
court and the Group settled the amount of approximately RMB2.1
million to the claimant according to the aforesaid judgement
on 27 August 2021. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
approximately RMBO0.6 million has been recognised as part of
additions to the property, plant and equipment and a reversal of
provision for legal claim of approximately RMB358,000 has been
recognised as other income.

(b) Due to the impact of COVID-19, a number of policies including
the relief of social insurance have been promulgated by the
government since February to December 2020 to expedite
resumption of economic activities, which resulted in the relief of
certain contributions to defined contribution scheme for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there
were no contributions forfeited by the Group on behalf of
its employees who left the plan prior to vesting fully in such
contribution, nor had there been any utilisation of such
forfeited contributions to reduce future contributions. As at
31 December 2021 and 2020, no forfeited contributions were
available for utilisation by the Group to reduce the existing
level of contribution.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

A M RRME

8. BHMAX

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR¥EF T
Current tax EH B A
PRC EIT B ATER 7,067 7,181
Over-provision in prior year BAEFEBEERE (130) (253)
6,937 6,928
Deferred tax ELEBE
Current year (Note 26) NEZ (B £26) 1,833 553
Income tax expense FiisfiA X 8,770 7,481

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
the Company is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group had no
assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
PRC EIT is calculated at 25% of the assessable profits for
subsidiary established in the PRC.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, a
subsidiary of the Group, Sichuan Huanlong Technology Fabric
Co., Ltd. (“Sichuan Huanlong”), is qualified as a company
under the development strategy of the PRC’s western region
and was able to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15%
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Company’s subsidiary, Shanghai Jinxiong Paper Making
Net Carpet Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Jinxiong”) was accredited
as High and New Technology Enterprise since in 2014 and
further renewed in November 2017 and November 2020,
therefore entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for 2020 to
2022.

BERSHBRARER FATBARHS
RSB BR -

AR & B R B £20215F12 A318 1 F E I &
TR AN B 1S B B JE BR A g A (20204 ¢ )
B BEGEMBRETPRBANGSHA =R
e

REBFEECERBTHRENEEMREREZD D
EFRBBRABERGSI  TRCXMAEHREET
B 35 A A SZ M B X B B ER A g A B9 25% 5T & e

BEFEBEEZZER ASEWE 2R M)
RERMBEDBERARTMIIERELD S ELK
APEAIBARAAZIETAR ] RE £2021
F K2020F12 8318 IL F E Z B515% K B = A
SRBE o

AARMMNBAR LEBSRERARABARAR ([ L
HERERDHAM4BETIELASTEMEE B
2017118 K%2020F 11 A — S EE - Bt B
2020F £2022F H15% M B EF X o

Annual Report 2021 £#& 115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

In addition, both Sichuan Huanlong and Shanghai Jinxiong it A
are eligible for tax deduction up to 200% and 175% of
approved research and development costs incurred for the

years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 respectively.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

8. IBEHMxX(E)

mIRER LB

st A\
R& 70

Al A B E20204F

T 2021612 8318 1F F [Z E £ W &2 & KA
BHEEBERZEAZRZ200% F175% & F YR & o

PERAXBRERRETAENG SN HE

profit at applicable tax rate: N
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Profit before income tax B FiT 15 %4 A1 4 A 59,460 48,494
Tax at the applicable income tax of 25% iE A FT 13 8125% &) 7 18 14,865 12,124
Tax effects of non-deductible expenses AT R B 2 B R S R 2 (T A
(note) 1,820 2,314
Utilisation of temporary differences FERAERNRERONERHEEZR
previously not recognised (83) (92)
Additional deduction for research and BL A 2 B S B AN LR
development expenses (2,258) (1,291)
Over-provision in prior year BAEFEBEEE (130) (253)
Effect of income taxed at concessionary rate ZE B Kt E M5 2 £ (5,444) (5,321)
Income tax expenses FT 5% f 2 8,770 7,481
Note: Non-deductible expenses mainly included listing expenses B TANBRALXFEZERELTRAIEE TRAE

and certain entertainment expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 9. EEMERERESFMAL
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

9.1 Directors’ emolument IIMIEEME

Year ended 31 December 2021

BZ2021F12A31HLLEE
Contributions
Salaries, to retirement
allowances benefit
Fees and benefits Bonus schemes Total
e RIKE A
ne RHREAN A & X At

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®TR ARBTR ARBTR AR TR

Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Zhou & 5% & — 800 — — 800
Ms. Shen L — - - - -
Mr. Xie Zongguo (“Mr. Xie”) HRBEEE(HEE]D — 700 400 61 1,161
Ms. Yuan Aomei (‘Ms. Yuan”)  =EELt(R%xL])
(Note a) (ffita) — 184 - 39 223
— 1,684 400 100 2,184
Year ended 31 December 2020
HZ2020F12A31ALLFE
Contributions
Salaries, to retirement
allowances benefit
Fees and benefits Bonus schemes Total
e RINEF
ne 28R AE A TE4T SR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETTT ARETTT
Executive directors: BTEE:
Mr. Zhou &% & — — — — —
Ms. Shen hr L — — — — —
Mr. Xie HrkE — 392 — 22 414
— 392 — 22 414
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Ms. Yuan RuTL = = = = =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRME

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 9. EEMERTAESFMAL(E)
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

9.1 Directors’ emolument (Continued) QN1 ESEHM S (B)

Notes: B &t -

(@) Ms. Yuan was redesignated as executive director on 14 April (@) REZLTR2021F4B14REFATERNTES -
2021.

(b) The appointments of Mr. Ip Wang Hoi, Mr. Zhang Shenjin (b) EXxHALEE RESEERTEREEESE
and Mr. Wang Yunchen as independent non-executive ERARARBLIENITES + WE R20225F
directors of the Company took effect upon listing on 11 1AM1MB L& AR - B E2021F12A8318 1k
January 2022. During the year ended 31 December 2021, FE - BEBYINTESELZE  WUAB
the independent non-executive directors have not yet been SIEHITE S F D REBE = E 5B -

appointed and have not received any directors’ remuneration
in the capacity of independent non-executive directors.

9.2 Five highest paid individuals 92HEEEFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest B E2021F12AMBLEFE AEERE &
in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 BHFMALTBEME(2020F : —R)EF
include two (2020: one) directors whose emoluments are H O 5 BT 5E9.134% B8 B £2021F12 A31
disclosed in Note 9.1. The aggregate of the emoluments BIEFEE  =4(20205: MZ) ALTHEE
of the three (2020: four) individuals for the year ended 31 BETIAE

December 2021 are as follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®ET T
Salaries, allowances and benefits Fre R RET 2,378 1,850
Contributions to retirement benefit RN R
schemes 158 66
2,536 1,916
The above individuals’ emoluments are within the il ATHSBRUATEE :
following band:
2021 2020
20214 20204
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 2%1,000,00075 JT 3 4
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9.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

9.2 Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

No director or the five highest paid individual received
any emoluments from the Group as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
nil). No director or the five highest paid individual has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

10.EARNINGS PER SHARE

1.

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to
equity holders of the Company is based on the following:

A M RRME

9. EEMERTIAEEHFMAL(E)

I2EEREHMAL(E)

HE2021F12A31MBLFE EE A B &
= 3 B A 48 £ 1 N £ [ U B ) B <2 (2020
FE) EABRSIEMASIRMARE R
BRFEIIEABBAREE - 8 E2021F
RAMNBLEFE EEAE&m T WA
44 4 P ZE Sk R B R E AT Bl & (20204 ¢
) o

10. 8RR &7

ARRERFTAANEBESRERNENTIRIET
XA EES

2021 2020
20214 20204
Earnings 2R
Profit for the year attributable to equity RRAFNE=TFAAESLSER T
holders of the Company (in RMB’000) (AR®EFT) 50,136 40,517
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of F{E&t & & I & AN & 5| #Y
calculating basic earnings per share LB E 365,800,000 365,800,000
Earnings per share (RMB cents) BEREFNARES) 13.71 11.08

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the total shares of the
Company in issue were 12,000 ordinary shares. The number
of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share has been determined on the assumption
that the Reorganisation and the Capitalisation Issue (as
defined in Note 27) of 365,788,000 ordinary shares had been
effective on 1 January 2020.

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
share for years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as there
were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue during the
years.

DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

20214 20205128310 » AR A K 2 % 17
f% 10 4 £ 512,000k @ - AETESRE
AEFMLBREE DEREARERNMCET(E
% 5 [f5£27) 365,788,000 % & 3@ A% E 12202041
P18 £ 8 H &R E e

B R & £20214 £ 2020512 318 Ik F E # &
ERTHNEBEEHEZER AEXSEFENS
B#HEsRMNEGRELRBF —5 -

11.RE

BEETREZRNEET2021F128318 L F E K
A% B2 (20204 : E) »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B E|RMEE

12.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12.9% HERREE
Leasehold Plant and Furniture Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements machinery  and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
RER
B¥ BE%E  HERER BEE hE ERIE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
KRBT  AR®Tz  ARKTR  AR®Tz  ARKTR  AR®Tx  ARKT:

Cost A

As at 1 January 2020 1202081518 43,575 981 1767 2,560 658 2411 127,952
Additions AE 3,686 - 614 132 - 15,869 20,301
Transfers ER — — 589 16 = (605) =
Disposals & — — (483) (33) — 2 (518)
As at 31 December 2020 #2020512A31A 47,261 981 78,487 2,675 658 17,673 147,735
As at 1 January 2021 R021%51A18 47,261 981 78,487 2,675 658 17,673 147,735
Additions AE - 895 1,094 192 641 72,97 75,793
Transfers g% 40,892 - 9,908 877 - (51,677) -
Transfer to investment property BARENE (41,443) - - - - - (41,443)
Disposals/Writen-off HE /W (0,397) - (1.220) (1 (86) (10,720)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021£125318 31,313 1,876 88,269 3,721 1,213 38,967 171,365
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE

As at 1 January 2020 202051718 20,397 556 42,455 2,384 594 — 66,386
Charge for the year ERzit 3,601 128 5,297 103 12 — 9,141
Written back on disposals HEREMD - - (459) [@n - = (486)
As at 31 December 2020 120205127318 23,998 684 47,293 2,460 606 - 75,041
As at 1 January 2021 R021%51A18 23,998 684 47,293 2,460 606 - 75,041
Charge for the year ERzi 3,853 188 5478 181 2% = 9,724
Transfer to investment property EARENE (321) - - - - - (327)
Written back on disposalshwritten-off (% /M EE &M (4,304) - (1,031) (17) (81) = (5,433)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%125318 23,220 872 51,740 2,624 549 - 79,005
Net book amount RERE

As at 31 December 2020 #2020512A31A 23,263 207 31,194 215 52 17,673 72,694
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%125318 14,093 1,004 36,529 1,103 664 38,967 92,360
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBERRME
12.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12.9%  BERR®E(E)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s property, plant and M2021F12A318 - A & B E & # 8 &k | %
machinery with aggregate net book amount of RMB70,769,000 B & A R ¥70,769,00070 (2020 : A K #
(2020: RMB46,494,000) were pledged to secure the bank 46,494,0007T) B9 ¥ % - R 55 R i g8 A EUAS &% T
borrowings granted to the Group (Note 34). ANEE A R1TE R (M 5E34) ©
Included in the net carrying amount of property, plant and AFAYME BMEEAIXENEREEFEANSER
equipment is right-of-use assets as follows: BEEMT :
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Buildings EF 1,352 2,996
The above right-of-use assets is depreciated on a straight-line i RAEEENMGSAEAFEFHSERNEAE
basis over their estimated useful life or lease term as follows: BOERBET
Buildings 5% or shorter of the lease term g5 5% KRB E
During the year ended 31 December 2021, expenses of #H £2021F12A31H IEF E * A R #337,0007T
RMB337,000 (2020: RMB216,000) related to short-term (20204F : A R #¥216,00070) B X B B &
leases was recognised in profit or loss. B WERB=mP TUER -
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e M HRRME

13.INVESTMENT PROPERTY 13. 8 EWHE
RMB’000
AR® T
Cost 29N
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 1202091818 + 202012 8318 &
and 1 January 2021 2021F1A18 —
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EHYE BMERRKB 41,443
At 31 December 2021 M"2021512A31H 41,443
Accumulated depreciation E-S i
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 7202091818 * 2020F12A31H &
20211818 —
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EHYE WERR 327
Charge for the year FAXEH 164
At 31 December 2021 72021512 A31H 491
Net book amount REEE
At 31 December 2020 #2020F12 A31H —
At 31 December 2021 R2021512 8311 40,952

Details the Group’s investment property and information about
the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
are as follows. The levels are based on the observability and
significance of inputs to the measurements, as follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities.

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly, and not using significant
unobservable inputs.

* Level 3: significant unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

13.INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued) 13. R EWE(E)

As at 31 December 2021

7R2021F12831H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& EFEZR F=R #Et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTR AR¥ TR AR%¥ TR

Recurring fair value measurement REMEAFETE
— Factory building in the PRC — R E — — 42,000 42,000
— — 42,000 42,000

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

The Group’s investment property was revalued at 31
December 2021 by an independent professional qualified
valuer. The Group’s management has discussion with the
valuer on the valuation assumptions when the valuation is
performed at the end of reporting period.

The fair value of the factory building in the PRC is estimated
using an income approach which capitalises the estimated
rental income stream, net of projected operating costs, using
a discount rate derived from market yields implied by recent
transactions in similar properties. When actual rent differs
materially from the estimated rents, adjustments have been
made to the estimated rental value. The estimated rental
stream takes into account current occupancy level, estimates
of future vacancy level, the terms of leases and expectations
for rentals from future leases over the remaining economic
life of the properties.

BE2021F12AMALEFE  F-—REF R
2 T B 4B 3 £ 8 1 (20205 < &) ©

NEBRIEE Y E N2021F12831B KB A
ERBEGEMETNGEE RBEESHRETRE
BR AEENEEECOHRGHENRIHEGE
MEFANW® -

RABHOBERBEAEZGBEFTAFE AER
BUMEROCMXZENRETEELSEXEY
MIFRE - BEGFOES KA RMGERLE
KARBEEEA - EERHSEGAESER
EXEZRE HAHESERMNESELAR - B
HeEREAREMOBEE  HFORKREER
MEGK URZRYENFREESHEB R
AHEHEWHEE -
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14.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

As at the date of this report, the Company had direct and
indirect interest in the following subsidiaries, all of which are
private limited liability companies, and the particulars of which
are set out below:

Place and date of Registered /
incorporation and Issued and
Company name operation paid up capital
EME LR Bift/B8%
ARER BERHREH RARER
Directly held:
ERKA:
Lion Courage Enterprises Limited (nofe a) BVI, 23 October 2018 USD100
Lion Courage Enterprises Limited (4722 EBRAES 100£ 7
2018107238
Virtuous Way Limited BVI, 22 August 2018 USD100
BRERAA EBRAEE  201858A228 10027
Indirectly held:
BEsE:
Vanov Tianhe International Holdings Limited Hong Kong, 30 November 2018 HKD10,000
REANBRERERAA &% 20185114308 10,000
RBRERANRARLT The PRC, 28 February 2019 RMB1,000,000
Chengdu Huanlong Funeng
Technology Co., Ltd.*
RBRERANRARLT RE 201952288 AR¥1,000,0007
RABEUMBABRAA The PRC, 27 March 2019 RMB1,000,000
Chengdu Huanlong Lixin
Technology Limited*
RABEUMBABRAA RE 2019535278 AR¥1,000,0007
Marvel Dragon Development Limited Hong Kong, 6 July 2018 HKD 100
EEERERLA £18 2018 7H6H 10070
mIRER G ENERAA The PRC, 7 February 2007 RMBA40,650,000
Sichuan Huanlong Technology
Fabrics Co., Ltd*
BIRERESNERAT RE - 2007F2A78 AR%40,650,0007
LB ERRUERAT The PRC, 31 October 2000 RMB35,590,000
Shanghai Jinxiong Paper Making
Net Carpet Co., Ltd*
LEeREARURRART R+ 20005107318 AR %35,590,00070

*

The translation of name in English is for identification purposes
only.

The above table includes subsidiaries of the Company which
principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
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14. 7 B /B 2 B B9 # #8

MRARRERH  RARRIATHERR SR
AEREBEERRBEAERRME®EZD  F15#
FanT

As at the date  Principal

As at 31 December of this report activities
MM2E3A RERERE TEEH
2021 2020
0215 2020%
100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
REER
100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
REER
100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
REER
100% 100% 100%  Investment holding
REER
99% 99% 99%  Investment holding
REER
100% 100% 100%  Investment Holding
REER
99% 99% 99%  Manufacturing
and sales of
papermaking felts
EEEUNFER
HE
100% 100% 100%  Manufacturing
and sales of
papermaking felts
EEEUNFER
HE

O ORXEFREMHRBR -

FRBIMAAAMBARA DY AEEEE R
FERIEYE JANAEBEEFHEEE
HHNHBRF -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S A =
REMBHRRME
15.LAND LEASE PREPAYMENT 15. T H E FE S K 1E
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBT T
The Group’s land lease prepayments comprise: AEEMN T HHHEE
TET R IE B 1E
The PRC, held on : RE AR ELES
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years — 10E50F 4 5,518 5,856
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year FHREE 5,856 6,194
Depreciation me (338) (338)
Carrying amount at the end of the year FREEE 5,518 5,856
The leasehold land is situated in the PRC and held under HMELTHMNRTE TUPHEROESE - B
medium lease. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s land 2021F12A318 ' AE B RETEFERE®EE A
lease prepayment with a carrying amount of RMB5,518,000 A R 5,518,000 T (20204F : A E #5,856,000
(2020: RMB5,856,000) were pledged to a bank to secure TR T A EFEMNZIE  UEERE TAEEH
bank borrowings granted to the Group (Note 34). SRAT B (M FE34) ©
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16.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B & E

Capitalised
Computer  development  Construction
Trademarks software costs in progress Total
i EREN BRLHERA ERIRE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETR
Cost KA
As at 1 January 2020 2020F1 718 32,454 615 7,863 4,481 45,413
Additions AE — 96 — 1,474 1,570
Additions from internal developments NPRERE — — — 6,644 6,644
Transfer EL — = 4,481 (4,481) —
As at 31 December 2020 12020612 318 32,454 Akl 12,344 8,118 53,627
As at 1 January 2021 202161518 32,454 Akl 12,344 8,118 53,627
Additions NE — 199 — 699 898
Additions from internal developments ABFHERE - — — 11,410 11,410
Transfer B 14,556 (14,556) =
As at 30 December 2021 R2021%12830A 32,454 910 26,900 5,671 65,935
Accumulated amortisation EHE
As at 1 January 2020 120201 A1H — 51 1,207 = 1,258
Charge for the year ERTH — 29 1,232 - 1,261
As at 31 December 2020 12020F12 A31H - 80 2,439 — 2,519
As at 1 January 2021 202151818 - 80 2,439 — 2,519
Charge for the year ERTH - 65 2,010 - 2,075
As at 30 December 2021 R2021%12830A — 145 4,449 = 4,594
Net book amount REFE
As at 31 December 2020 12020912 f318 32,454 631 9,905 8,118 51,108
As at 30 December 2021 72021%12530R 32,454 765 22,451 5,671 61,341
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16.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Intangible assets mainly represent:

(1) the trademarks were acquired from the non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary. The trademarks were
regarded as having indefinite useful lives because in
opinion of the directors of the Group, they are capable of
being renewed indefinitely at insignificant cost;

(2) computer software were acquired from third parties; and

(3) capitalised development costs generated through internal
research and developments and capitalised technical
know-hows by the Group.

The Group assesses the useful lives capitalised developments
costs by considering the economic life cycles, continuous
technological advancement of the patents, the experience on
previous products of the Group and contractual legal rights
of the patents, it is concluded that the useful lives of these
patents are 10 years.

The amortisation charge for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 is included in “Administrative and other
operating expenses” in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Impairment testing

The trademarks with indefinite useful lives and the intangible
assets that under construction in progress which not yet
available for use have been allocated to the relevant cash-
generating units (the “CGU”) which is the same for impairment
testing.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on value in use calculations, covering a detailed five-
year budget plan, followed by an extrapolation of expected
cash flows at the average growth rates of 4% (2020: 4%).

A M RRME

16. B EE (&)

BVEEXZZ4:

(1) EMBARAIFERRRKBAENEE -
BERESAFERATEAFH  AAR
SEEER/AAERAREHUBBEKLE
REAE A&

(2 BE=7TBANEREME &

(@) AEEBBAIMERENMCEMANBZE
EHERNCRBERA -

AEBEBREREELEGBY FEFNHER
MES TEEBEEMNELREENNSLH
BIRRER] - URHEEAMCFABER AN AERFHY -
AREBERRZFEMOAERFHB10F ©

H £20214F %2020512831B It E - #iHE
BEfAGEREZREMEERZROITER &
Hibam] -

5 R =

AERAEAFHANBEERERATHRERNE
EEVEECYEEFARBER S NERBR
cELABMN(REELEMD -

REeELBUNAKOSEREREEEM
BE RE—AFANIFREE - BRIZ4%
(20204F : 4%) WP ERIMETRIRN SR E -
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16.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment testing (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the discount rates applied to the
cash flow projections were 13.9% (2020: 13.0%). The key
assumptions for the Group has been determined by the
Group’s management based on past performance and its
expectations for the industry development. The discount rates
used are pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
segment.

Based on the above key assumptions, as at 31 December
2021 the recoverable amount would exceed the carrying
amounts of the CGU by not less than approximately RMB49.3
million (2020: RMB57.0 million). If the growth rate decreased
by 1% or the discount rate (pre-tax) increased by 1%, the
recoverable amount of the relevant CGU would be dropped
by approximately RMB7.1 million and RMB9.2 million as at 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB7.3 million and RMB9.8 million).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, a reasonably
possible change in key parameters would not cause
the carrying amount of the relevant CGU to exceed the
recoverable amount. If the growth rate decreased by 25%
or discount rate increased by 12% as at 31 December 2021
(as at 31 December 2020: the growth rate decreased by 25%
or discount rate increased by 13%), the recoverable amount
of the relevant CGU would be approximated to its carrying
amount.

In the opinion of the directors, there is no reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable
amount of the trademarks is based that would cause the
carrying amounts to exceed the recoverable amount.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s intangible assets with a
carrying amount of nil (2020: RMB3,531,000) were pledged to
a bank to secure bank borrowings granted to the Group (Note
34).
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e M HRRME

16. B & & (%8)

L E R (&)

IR & 7 = T8 B B & A Bh 2R R 02021412 A31H
713.9% (20204 : 13.0%) ° NE B M £ Z R &
HASEEEERERARBRYUTERED
TEHET - TEAMBEERTRME RS
HEEMmEAERERR -

RIE A+ B /HRE - KR2021612A318 » 7] ik
EEHEORBBRECEAENNERAET D
R & A R #49.38 & 7t (20204 : A R#57.08
EIT) o i 18 K R H 1% sk 86 38 = (& #X Ai) 1
1% » Bl 7202112 A3MB HEBEIR & E L B
MR ESERRLOARBITIEELREAR
#9028 & L (2020F : ARBT7IEE TR AR
9 8H BT °

ARBIEERE  TEL2H8NEABEAEEH T
CEYREARSESAENMNERER B KD
& 58 o i R2021F12 A31H & # & R F 4225%
gk Bh 38 = 1% 1N12% (2020412 8318 : # & X
125% sk B 358 R 1L 1113%) - AR e EL B
MHAKRESEERERAEMES °

EEZRA RAGTHOEBERNTIERR
TESEARED EREEHEBLITLKE S
R e

M2021F12A31B - AEEMERFEFLEE
(20204 : R IR @ B A A R #3,531,0007T A9
BREE) TRITUMEBE T AEBEHETER
(P 5£34) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERERME
17.INVENTORIES 17. 78
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR¥EF T
Raw materials JR# % 5,636 5,448
Work-in-progress EREIRE 4,596 2,922
Finished goods X 2,363 2,831
12,595 11,201
Less: provision for inventories W FERE (692) (1,167)
11,903 10,034
Analysis of the provision for inventory write down is as below: FEMOBREENIOT :
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR T T
At the beginning of the year NS 1,167 1,917
Reversal for the year FAEE (475) (750)
At the end of the year R E R 692 1,167
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, the H £2020F K2021F12A31B L FE - T E#&#
reversal of provision for inventory arose from sale of obsolete HRBDHEREERARTFEEE -
inventory.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s inventories of nil (2020: 20216124318 - 7 & B #f £ & #7177 | (2020
RMB2,421,000) were pledged to a bank to secure bank F A RK2421,000FE) FERT - KU
borrowings granted to the Group (Note 34). Y15 5% T 2N 5 B /O 3R 17 18 51 (BT 5E34) -
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S A =
e M BHRRMEE
18.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18.E 5 K& H fih B W X 1E
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR¥EF T
Trade receivables Z 5 FE W R IE
— Third parties —#E=0 135,298 110,475
— Related parties — B 710 577
Bills receivables JE W = & 15,553 27,408
Less: Loss allowance provision B RS (3,639) (5,724)
147,922 132,736
Prepayments T8 5 5k 18 844 3,004
Prepaid listing expenses AR EmRAX 3,805 3,141
Other receivables H b FE W R IE 906 2,230
5,555 8,375
153,477 141111
The directors considered that the fair values of trade and EFERAREIREMEBRFIEN A FEEER
other receivables are not materially different from their HEWLEE XNZEE - R2021F12H31H - A&
carrying amounts. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade WEEHE S ERKIE (20205 BFARK
receivables of nil (2020: RMB15,782,000) were pledged to 15,782,000t W & 5 FE K IH) AEUG & T AR &
secure bank borrowings granted to the Group (Note 34). B9 R 17 18 5k (B 3E34) -
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18.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

As at each reporting date, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables based on the delivery date is as follows:

A M RRME

18. B 5 & H At B WK B (&)

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T

Within 90 days 90K A 92,081 73,589
91 days to 180 days 91K 180K 25,505 20,472
181 days to 365 days 181K £365KX 11,724 11,314
Over 365 days 365K A 6,698 5,677
136,008 111,052

The bills represent promissory notes issued by banks received
by the Group from customers who discharge their liabilities to
pay the Group for the goods or services invoiced. These bills
are endorsable, unsecured, non-interest bearing and matured
within 1 year.

As at 31 December 2021, included in the balances, bills
receivables of RMB3,821,000 (2020: nil) were discounted with
recourse. These bills receivables were not derecognised as
the title of these bills receivables were not transferred to the
counterparties. In the other hand, as at 31 December 2021,
discounted bills financing of RMB3,821,000 (2020: nil) was
recognised for the cash received (Note 23).

The ageing analysis of bills receivables presented based on
issue date at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

SREAKELEPEUIARTELNALEE -
EREFPRERERIBRBETRAASENN
HEFE - ZEREBEA/UEE  EEW TFE
RPR1FREE -

MR20215F12A318 ' sTAEHEWREEFR - A
R #3,821,0007TC (2020 : Z)E R IT A F A
RiE - ZERBEBRH AW RIEER  TER
ZERKRZENMEETYAEBREHFH - B
—HE > R2021F12A318 © Bt WELH IR © 1
REEIRZ IR E A R#3,821,0007T (20204 : &)
(Pff 5£23) °

BESREHRETHHZ N EKEEER
DATUE ¢

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AR®ET T

0-90 days 0E90K 10,184 12,894
91-180 days 91E180 K 4,839 12,395
181-365 days 181% 365K 530 2,119
15,553 27,408
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me

18.

P ISR M A

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Bills receivables endorsed

Not included in the years end balances, during the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group has transferred
bills receivables amounted to RMB106,335,000 (2020:
RMB80,189,000) to settle its payables through endorsing
the bills to its suppliers. Under the bills arrangements, the
Group has also transferred bills receivables amounted to
nil (2020: RMB281,000) to the parties under Bills-To-Cash/
Bills Arrangement and to customers under Bills Change
Arrangement during the year ended 31 December 2021. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the
PRC, the endorsee of the bills have a right of recourse against
the endorser if the issuing banks default. For those endorsed
to its suppliers, the Group has derecognised these bills
receivables and the trade and other payables in their entirety.
For those endorsed under Bills-To-Cash/Bills Arrangement or
Bills Change Arrangement, the Group has also derecognised
these bills receivables in their entirety and recognised
the corresponding amount of cash and/or endorsed bank
acceptance bills of total equal value. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of these
bills to the endorsee. The Group has limited exposure in
respect of the settlement obligation of these bills receivables
under relevant PRC rules and regulations should the issuing
banks failed to settle the bills on maturity date. The Group
considered the issuing banks of the bills are of good credit
quality and the risk of non-settlement by the issuing banks on
maturity is insignificant.

As at 31 December 2021, the maximum exposure to loss,
which is same as the amount payable by the Group to the
endorsee in respect of the endorsed bills, should the issuing
banks fail to settle the bills on maturity date amounted to
RMB106,335,000 (2020: RMB80,470,000). All the bills
receivables endorsed have a maturity date of less than one
year from the end of each reporting period.
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18. B 5 & H At B WK B (&)

EEERBERERE

DNETAF R &8 0 R B =22021F128318 IEF
B AEEEDEEREKEEARK106,335000
70 (20204 : A R #80,189,0007T) © M A H 4t fE
HAEREEXSEBEEEHERMNRE RER
B ANEETEREE2021F12A318 &
FERBEELE ZEZHRASHEZE %
BREERZFLHERNE P S 2 E R E % (2020
F: AR ¥281,00070) - IRIEFBEE | - 0%
PEEMNRITELN  EENEEEATRAES
ATHEERE -BREHEESENEREMNS -
AREEEBBERIBERZEEREERES R
HiEARE RRBEERLE " EELHxK
EEZELTHEENEEMNS A5SEERE
iﬂm&m;ﬁﬂﬂﬁz = WHERARSENER
%&/i IBEESENEERTELER - K
Té%uﬂ% AREBEBZSEZEMAED
BABOTEBREEOFEREFAFREEA R
%zq:nafaﬁau ERR W ITIRITRAERE
HEZEZE AEERZSEREERAZTN
REETZRBRER A5SBERAZEHITR
TERGFEEEE  BETHETRE HE K4
HENRRBHTEE

M20215F12A318 © M BETRITAREER 2 H A
BENZEE AISABEERBESEARAEEIRE

EEEBBNANREBANSEAARY
106,335,000t (20204 : A R*80,470,0007T) °
FEDEBRKEE Y 5 MAEREHRES
R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Bills receivables endorsed (Continued)

The movement in the ECL allowance of trade and bills
receivables is as follows:

e MBHRME
18. 5 5 J% H fto 8 U5 305 (48)
BHEEKER(E)

BORURERBURRENEBEEBRRERE
2EmT:

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AR T T

At the beginning of the year R E A 5,724 4,268

Amounts written off £ ¥ 88 & 22 (2,083) —
(Reversal of)/Provision of ECL allowance BHEEER

(B R m) Bt (2) 1,456

At the end of the year RFE R 3,639 5,724

As at 31 December 2021, included in the balance of
loss allowance provision are individually impaired trade
receivables with an aggregate balance of RMB1,187,000
(2020: RMB1,652,000), with reference to the historical
experience of these receivables, the collection of these
receivables may not be recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

Further details of the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade and other receivables are set out in Note
35.4.

2021612 A318 -« £ 18 & & & 8 15 E 5%
ENE S ERRIBNE LS % A A RK1,187,000
7L (20204 : A R #1,652,0007T) MR £ Z %
FEW R TER BT AR ZS R IE RN
Bl e AEBETEHXZELEHFTETMERFTR -

AEENEERRLESREMERREEL
MEERBRFFHNHES5.4 -
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e M HRRME

19.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AND 1D RERRSEEYUARZIRHBITE
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT £
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Cash and bank balances & RIRITH &R 12,609 30,775
Less: Restricted bank deposit X R I8R AT 7 R — (1,000)
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 12,609 29,775
Cash at banks earns interests at floating rates based on daily TR EBBESHRITERMNEFENZH
bank deposit rates. As at 31 December 2020, the restricted A = BREF B - $R2021F12H31H » X R &l &
bank deposit was denominated in RMB carried 0.35% interest TERAARBEE) BT E R0.35% &R
at prevailing market rate and pledged to a bank to secure THEANEFE  YEER T -—HRITURSE
bank borrowings granted to the Group (Note 34). BT AR B /iR 17 18 30 (Kt 534) ©
20.CONTRACT LIABILITIES 205 EE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AR¥EF T
Amount received in advance for sales of B E SR EHE D
papermaking felts products expected T 5 U EX /Y SR I8 1% A A
to be recognise: T~ B A W R
— within one year ——FR 512 739
Contract liabilities represent the deposits received from the EHNEBBEAMANEFERERERANERE
customers in advance of the transfer of papermaking felts to Fi&®

the customers.

For the contract liabilities as at 31 December 2021, the R221F12AME N AN EBEMmME ARK
balances of RMB200,000 (2020: RMB424,000) are recognised 200,0007T (20204 : A [ #424,0007T) 8 4 &4
as revenue to profit or loss within one year after the end of EAERERARE - FABZHRNEZRR AW E

each reporting period.

134 VANOV HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED HBEZRARA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

21.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21.EZ R HEMENRE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥EF T
Trade payables BESENRE
— Third parties —#E=0 25,016 19,054
Other payables H {th & {4 7R 1E
Other payables H b FE A FR 8 4,460 3,237
Construction payables FEfN TR IE 4,547 —
Accrued salaries JEET T E A 5,411 4,337
Receipt in advance from a tenant T8 UL F A 1,225 =
Accruals JEET A 1,334 177
Accrued listing expenses FEET EMRAX 5,604 8,425
Warranty provision RERE 4,605 3,932
Provision for legal claim ERBRREE — 1,903
Other tax payables H b FE A5 B IE 6,591 6,156
33,777 28,167
58,793 47,221
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRME

21.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 1.ESRHMENSRIE(E)
The Group is granted by its suppliers a credit periods of 30 to REFEEEEERE FI30E0ARMEER - B
90 days. Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of BREZHH  BEHENKREBENERESTAT

the trade payables is as follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Within 30 days 30K 11,289 7,961
31 days to 60 days 31K E60XK 6,961 4,646
61 days to 90 days 61K 290K 2,585 1,920
91 days to 180 days 91K 180K 1,622 2,087
181 days to 365 days 180K £365K 1,049 1,568
Over 365 days 365K A 1,510 872
25,016 19,054
The carrying values of trade and other payables are B EMBENRENREERSE RS EME
considered to be reasonable approximation of their fair HAFERBSR -
values.
The movement in the warranty provision is as follows: REBEBENEESHNOT:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Product warranties: EmRE:
At beginning of year NG 3,932 3,422
Provision for the year F R 4115 3,928
Utilisation for the year FARE A (3,442) (3,418)
At end of year F R 4,605 3,932
The warranty provision represents management’s best REBEEETIEE H A & B ot 38 4L F B IR 1145
estimate of the Group’s liability under 45 to 120 days warranty Z120ARE(RBBRALR KRB B EMD
granted on papermaking felts, based on prior experience and TEBRELH)MAESENREME ©

industry averages for defective products.
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A M RRME

22.LEASE LIABILITIES 22.EE8E
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR¥EF T
Total minimum lease payment due: ENRERENRERE:
— Within one year —F R 1,367 1,648
— After one year but within two years —HBiE—FELIRME — 1,367
1,367 3,015
Future finance charges on leases liabilities HEEBERARREEHR (29) (132)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBGBRE 1,338 2,883
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Present value of minimum lease payments: & K& RIERE
— Within one year — &R’ 1,338 1,545
— After one year but within two years —BB—FEINME — 1,338
1,338 2,883
Less: Portion due within one year included under B RBBEIE TH—FA
current liabilities ZHA &6 (1,338) (1,545)
Portion due after one year included under non- IERBAEBETH —F1&
current liabilities | EE — 1,338
The Group leases properties for operation and these lease AEERKSEMERYE  ZSHEAERNA
liabilities were measured at the present value of the lease AEXFHHEENKRNBEEGE - FTEHEH MU
payments that are not yet paid. All leases are entered at fixed EEBRR—MMESFHEERBRTZ - A
prices and typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 5 years, TR E R EEEEME -
lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis.
The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard AEEVEREHBENEAEEAHEANARHE
to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored within the SRR AEENEKHMAEREEAE -
Group’s treasury function.
The total cash outflows for leases including the payments of HE2021F12A3MBLEFE - HENRE £ R iH
lease liabilities for the year ended 31 December 2021 were RBEEHEAGENNFT) A A KH1,985,000
RMB1,985,000 (2020: RMB1,534,000). 7T (20204 : A R #1,534,0007T)
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23.DISCOUNTED BILLS FINANCING

The balance represents borrowings from banks by
discounting, with recourse, bills receivables to the Group
which were endorsed by third parties. The Group continues
to recognise the carrying amount of the underlying bills
receivables, as presented in Note 18, since the title of
receivables was not transferred to the counterparties.

24. BANK BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings were carried at amortised cost, secured and
repayable within one year.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. HBERERME

ZEGEBRAMAAEEEERENREZE
MBMEHORITER ZEBRBE=ZFTEFE -
HRERFRENMERYBEEREHNFT B
I 7S £5 [ A 4 T SR PN SE18 P 2 1 A8 B R R IR
B EREE

24.8R 1T B XK

IRITERTVIREHEK AT  BEERBERAR
FREE -

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥EF T
Bank loans, secured: RITER - BHEA:
— repayable within one year —BR—FAEE 105,000 115,000

As at 31 December 2021, the effective interest rate of the
bank borrowings were at 6.06% (2020: 6.05%) per annum.

The bank borrowings were secured by:

(a) pledged assets (Note 34);

(b) personal guarantee provided by the Controlling
Shareholders; and

(c) corporate guarantee provided by a related party.

The personal guarantee provided by the Controlling
Shareholders and corporate guarantee provided by a related
party mentioned above has been subsequently released after
the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25.0THER BORROWING

A M RRME

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBT T
Other borrowing H b {5 5K
— repayable within one year —BR—FAEE 8,326 —
— repayable in the second to fifth year inclusive @~—ZBARE —_EFAF(BIE
BEMSE)EE 14,208 —
22,534 —

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
entered into sale and leaseback agreements amounting
to RMB26,949,000 with leasing companies for acquisition
of machinery and equipment and motor vehicle (“Secured
Assets”) amounting to RMB36,926,000 for a period of 1 to 3
years. On loan drawdown date, the amount of RMB26,949,000
was directly transferred from the leasing companies to the
suppliers of the Secured Assets. Upon maturity, the Group
will be entitled to purchase the Secured Assets. As at 31
December 2021, one of the sale and leaseback agreement
amounting to RMB400,000 has been settled before maturity
and the related Secured Assets amounting to RMB506,000
has been purchased by the Group.

The effective interest rates underlying the contract is 7.2%
(2020: nil) per annum.

Sale and leaseback obligation of RMB22,534,000 as at 31
December 2021 was secured by the Group’s construction
in progress, the total carrying amount of which was
RMB29,998,000 (Note 12) and personal guarantee provided
by the Controlling Shareholders. The personal guarantee
provided by the Controlling Shareholders has been
subsequently released after the end of reporting date.

HE2021F12A3MBEFE  AEEHBAER
AlF] M & % A A R 126,949,000t H) & 14 [@
Wik o A B A K #36,926,0007T H) 1 28 K R
HWURABE(EBEEE]) B —ZE=F - RE
FIEMBEE - AR#26,949,000t HZ A E QA
BEEERTEREENHRED - KRR K
SEEEEBEBEMEE - R2021F12H31
B Edh—©%EEAR%400,000TH &% 0 H
HEEREBAARER EASEEEEARE
506,0007C K9 A B8 IR & £ -

SHMBEBERFF R E7.2% (20204 : £) -

R2021F12A3MBHM E B HAETAARE
22,534,000 - HASEMNTEE TR (REALE
A AR %29,998,0007T + i 57E12) & 2 B i R 12
HEEABERERR - ZERRFIREHEAE
RERBEBHRZIEER o
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RE MR
26.DEFERRED TAX 26.3F 3£ B 18
The movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are as EEFBBEEE (BE)MNEHNOT
follows:
Deferred Tax Assets ELEHRBEEE
Provision
Accelerated Provision of allowance  Unrealised
tax for on profit in
depreciation  inventories receivable  inventories Total
mE JE FER
BIEHE RERHE RERB FEEH @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTR
As at 1 January 2020 1202061A1H g8 288 579 42 942
Credited to/(Recognised in) REEPEA/ (BR)
profit or loss (Note 8) (#1i28) (33) (113) 280 10 144
As at 31 December 2020 and 12020612 A318 |k
1 January 2021 2021F1A18 — 175 859 52 1,086
Credited to/(Recognised in) RERFEA/ (BR)
profit or loss (Note 8) (#1:28) — ) (313) 18 (366)
As at 31 December 2021 72021612 A31H — 104 546 70 720
Deferred Tax Liabilities ELXEHEBEEE
Accelerated
tax Lease
depreciation liabilities Total
hn BRI B HEEE BEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®T T ARET T
As at 1 January 2020 1K2020F1H1H — (117) (117)
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 8) RB =P RN 78) (648) (49) (697)
As at 31 December 2020 and M2020F12 4318 &
1 January 2021 20211 HA18 (648) (166) (814)
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 8) I8 & R (K 728) (1,466) (1) (1,467)
As at 31 December 2021 M2021612HA31H (2,114) (167) (2,281)
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S A =
REMBHRRME
26.DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 26.EER 1B (48)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Continued) ELEBEBEEE(E)
As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax liabilities has not been R2021F12 A318 - & 7t 18I 2R 88 K 9 B #
recognised on the aggregate amount of temporary differences HERELKRAEMENTEANTREER
associated with the undistributed profits of Sichuan Huanlong REBRELCEHBEEE  TEHAMNENHAHR
for the withholding taxes that would be payable on the E A 495 A R¥166,253,0007T (20204 : A
unremitted earnings of approximately RMB166,253,000 (2020: R #115,266,0007T) ° AN &) 4% § 19 )11 3% 58 A9 A%
RMB115,266,000) that are subject to withholding taxes. The BHE MZEREZERARERDAAE
Company controls the dividend policy of Sichuan Huanlong e B
and it is not probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future.
27.SHARE CAPITAL 27. |7
No. of shares RMB’000
k= AR¥ETR
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE0.01E T A LB K
As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 ®2020%1 518 + 2020512 A31H
and 1 January 2021 A% 2021%F1 18 38,000,000 335
Increase in authorised share capital 2 00% E R A 1,962,000,000 24,020
As at 31 December 2021 2021F12 A31H 2,000,000,000 24,355
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 #®2020F1A18 + 2020512 A31H
and 30 December 2021 A &2021412 4308 12,000 1
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands RAEIR2018FMASH EH SR ST MK -
on 5 November 2018 with an authorised share capital of % TE IR 7K /380,000 7T+ 9 438,000,0008% &
HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 ordinary shares of A% 1 {B0.01%8 T /Y & 3@ X o

HK$0.01 each.
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27.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

On 9 December 2021, the shareholders resolved to
increase the authorised share capital of the Company
from HK$380,000 to HK$20,000,000 by the creation of
1,962,000,000 additional shares, each ranking pari passu
with the shares then in issue in all respects.

Pursuant to the resolutions of the shareholders passed on
9 December 2021, subject to the share premium account of
the Company being credited as a result of the global offering,
the directors were authorised to allot and issue a total of
365,788,000 shares credited as fully paid at par to the holders
of the shares on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on 8 December 2021 in proportion
to their shareholdings by way of capitalisation of the sum of
HK$3,657,880 standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company (the “Capitalisation Issue”). The
Capitalisation Issue is effective upon listing on 11 January
2022, pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders
passed on 22 December 2021. The shares allotted and issued
rank pari passu in all respects with the existing issued shares.

28.RESERVES

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s equity is set out in the
consolidated statements of changes in equity.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, each of
the company that was registered in the PRC is required to
appropriate 10% of the annual statutory profit after tax (after
offsetting any prior years’ losses), determined in accordance
with the PRC accounting standards, to the statutory reserve
until the balance of the reserve funds reaches 50% of the
entity’s registered capital. The statutory reserve can be
utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to increase capital,
provided the remaining balance of the statutory reserve is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents the aggregate
of the share capital of the subsidiaries comprising the Group
arising from the Reorganisation.
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e M HRRME

27. RA& (%)

M2021F12898 + Bk R & R @ B B &
1,962,000,0000% 58 5M B& 13+ 5 A A & B9 0K 2 AR
N £3380,00078 JT 1% 50 20,000,000 7T © &M%
BRORFMEFBEERERTNROZERSE
47 o

B RPR2021F12 A9HBBHRFZE » B A
RAIMBRO EEREASREEMERER &
HERE B BEARRR D (E R #ER3,657,880
BB RER  BIE20215F12 H8E AR L X
| NN N R N GRS = NS I = 0y 2
LBl - MR ER S R ETREAEARIESR
/) & ££365,788,000/% ik 10 (B AL # 47]) - 1B
B R R2021F12 8228 B BN EMEIRE R
B2 1T E2022F1A11E EH# AR o AT
ERETHRORSTEEAREERTRO =
BRIZEHAL o

SERETEF OB EMRERN LR

EEME

REFERRE  EFEEMOSARAARR
BPESAEREENFEEERTR SN (K
HEMBEFEEBER) B B10% =X E/E -
BEERHBELAREIZEREIMERH50%
Bl - ZEFBUARNBHEAEFEBRRE
MEA HEAERBREBNRBEBLIPOREMELRHN
25% -

BB

AEENEARBEEARAEBREATHE R
AR R AR A B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R R R M
29.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 29. KD E BB MR &
THE COMPANY
2021 2020
2021 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
oz AR T ARBT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets EmBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NGOk F 1,594 1,594
Current assets nEBEE
Prepaid listing expenses TS ERREZ 18 3,805 3,141
Current liabilities REEE
Amount due to a subsidiary JE A B /BB A &) 5008 23,739 16,408
Accruals F& T 3R IE 6,404 8,425
30,143 24,833
Net current liabilities REBAEEFE (26,338) (21,692)
Total assets less current liabilities/ #EERABEE &E
net liabilities FE (24,744) (20,098)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAR S
Share capital A& 7 27 1 1
Reserves ki (24,745) (20,099)
Capital deficiencies B RS A (24,744) (20,098)
Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2022 and M202263A30B K HESZTSHE - WHMNUTA
were signed on its behalf. TREESE -
Shen Genlian Xie Zongguo
MR E iR E
Director Director
EZE EE
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e M HRRME

29.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 2. A RF B BERRKR(E)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: The movement of the Company'’s reserves are as follows: Bat - ARBIWREEZEESOT -
Capital Accumulated
reserve losses Total
BEXRFE 2 ER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR% T AR¥B TR
As at 1 January 2020 7202041818 1,592 (13,185) (11,593)
Loss for the year FRERE — (8,506) (8,506)
As at 31 December 2020 and R2020F12A318 &

1 January 2021 202141818 1,592 (21,691) (20,099)
Loss for the year FEREE — (4,646) (4,646)
As at 31 December 2021 1®2021F12A31H 1,592 (26,337) (24,745)
As at 31 December 2021, the distributable reserves of the MR2021F12 8318 ARG DR B L 58 A
Company amounting to nil (2020: nil). = (20206 : &) o

30.LEASE COMMITMENTS 30.fHE&E
As at end of the reporting date, the lease commitments for RBEAHR CHEENHEEAEZENT :

short-term leases are as follows:

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AR T T

Within one year —FR" — 59
As at 31 December 2020, the Group leases properties 2020512 4318 » 74~ & B BA121E A # 78 57 48
with a lease period of 12 months, which are qualified to be Bz BEBEEBMBEREELF165 [ S 5t

accounted for short-term lease exemption under HKFRS 16. AGHHEREHER -

144 VANOV HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED HBEZRAERA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at end of the reporting period, the Group has capital

commitments are as follows:

Contracted but not provided for property,
plant and equipment

mEMBEmERME
M. ERAE
RRER  NREBNERAENT
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AR®ETF T
BTN ERBEED
Y BE R 59,972 44,746

32.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

NREERERERMTE

METBHELENEEHR:

activities:
Bank Other Discounted Lease
borrowings borrowing bills financing liabilities
RITER Hite™ HREZBRE HESE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR
As at 1 January 2020 ®202051A1H 117,000 — 450 1,405
Cash flows: Beng:
Proceeds ikE 115,000 — — =
Repayment B (117,000) — (450) —
Capital element of lease rentals paid EffEEEA2H D — - — (1,282)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEERENEHD — - — (36)
Non-cash transaction: ERERS: — - —
New lease HE — - — 3,136
Rental concession Hef®E — — — (387)
Effect of interest charges FIRERYE — — - 47
As at 31 December 2020 and R2020512A318 &
1 January 2021 2021%1A81H 115,000 — — 2,883
Cash flows: Hene:
Proceeds PG 8 105,000 — 3,821 —
Repayment ER (115,000) (4,415) — —
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEEREAEHH — — — (1,545)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEERSFESSD — — = (103)
Non-cash transactions: RERG:
New borrowing (Note 25) IR (M 725) — 26,949 — —
Effect of interest charges HEBRTE — — — 103
As at 31 December 2021 R2021512831A 105,000 22,534 3,821 1,338
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e M HRRME

33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in Notes 18 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following transactions
with its related parties during the year:

(a) Names and relationship

Name of related party

BTG ER

Huanlong Industrial Group Co., Ltd. ((RBe TEZ £ E AR
/2 7)) (formerly known as Chengdu Huanlong Industrial
Felt Group Co., Ltd.* (A #IRE LE AR KE AR D A))

REIXZESEARAR (AIMARREIXARE
SEERAA)

Sichuan Huanlong New Material Ltd.*
(HNIREFMEBRRF])
POl ERBE T M R B IR A A

Sichuan Xilong Biomass Materials Technology Ltd.* (74 )|
BEEEDEMAE B RAA) (formerly known as
Sichuan Xilong Paper Ltd.* (P9 )I| ZFARELK E B R A 7))

M EFEEEDEMEBRERAT
(A EAERAEERAR)

Sichuan Huanlong Daily Products Ltd.* (P9)I| & IR 88 4 /&
F @B BR A7) (formerly known as Anxian Paper Ltd.*
(RBHAEBRAT))

Mg REEETRARERAA(FIBEGAEERAT)

Chengdu Huanlong Robot Ltd.*
(KBRECREERXBEERAA)
PREREE R RSN REGR AR

Mr. Zhou
A% £

Ms. Shen
B+

Mr. Xie
kA&

Ms. Yuan
R+t

*  The translation of name in English is for identification
purposes only.
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B 4R & B 75 3R 3% MY iR 18 X 24 P % B8 & 41 -
ERNFEANEEBEBETETTATIRS:

(a) EWREBR

Relationship with the Group
BEA K E M E R

A company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders

X ERBRIRIZEG SR E

A company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders
X% R AR R AR 8 R A

A company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders

5 4 AR AR A 1 69 A A

A company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders

5 4 AR AR A 1 69 A A

A company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders

X5 R AR R AE il B 2 Al

The controlling shareholder
AR AR R

The controlling shareholder

5 R B IR

An executive director of the Company
ANAE AR IR R

An executive director of the Company

ARB R ER

O EBNEREHRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS BV.EBWAREZ(E)
(Continued)

(b) Related party transactions (b) B S X5
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR®FT T
(i) Material transactions with related parties
(i) EFEBAINEARS
Name of related party Nature
BTG ER =1
Sichuan Huanlong New Material Ltd. Sales 574 371
P9I 3R BE XT M KL B R A A iHE
Sichuan Huanlong Daily Products Ltd. Sales 1,121 617
mNEREEZARERAF iHE
(ii) Key management personnel compensation
(i) TEEEAEHRM
Salaries, allowances and benefits Fe - ERBK
2 A 3,242 1,466
Contribution to defined contribution retirement plans 5% 7€ it & fk
5T & it 3% 220 73
3,462 1,539
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e M HRRME

33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS BEBWAHAREZ ()
(Continued)

(c) Balances with related parties (c) BEEAEE 5 M 4 &
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Amounts due from/(to) related parties: FEW(BE{) BB B 75 RRIE -
Sichuan Huanlong New Material Ltd. WIIREFME AR A
— trade —EZ5 294 132
— non-trade (note a) —3FE 5 (K ita) = 155
— non-trade (note b) —FE S (K Fb) (20) —
Sichuan Huanlong Daily MO)Il 4 3R BE & 0E B @
Products Ltd. BRAA
— trade —85 416 444
Mr. Zhou J& 5% &
— non-trade (note a) —3FE 5 (K ita) = 25
Ms. Shen =+
— non-trade (note a) —3FE 5 (Kita) — 25
Mr. Xie i 5 &
— non-trade (note b) —IEB S (K iEb) — (27)
690 754
Notes: B it -
a. The amounts comprised to “amounts due from related a. HECHESEKRAMBMRARERMNIEKEA
parties” in the face of consolidated statement of financial Bk 75 7R A
position.
b. The amount comprised to “amount due to a related party” in b. ZZEeHPEEGREMBRARNIENE
the face of consolidated statement of financial position. Bt 5 s IE ] o
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A M RRME

33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS BEABIXS(E)
(Continued)

The maximum outstanding balances are as follows: XmAEEERTT:
Amounts due from/(to) related parties: FEW (FEAY) BB 75 FRE ©
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥EF T
Maximum outstanding balances due from: FERA TSI &RRAEEEH
— Sichuan Huanlong New Material Ltd. — I RBEF M A B R A A 156 507
— Sichuan Xilong Biomass Materials — 0 )1 & 78 BE £ B v R R
Technology Ltd. BR QA — 3,204
— Sichuan Huanlong Daily Products Ltd. — A REEEFERAMBRAA 806 1,302
— Mr. Zhou — B kE 34 25
— Ms. Shen —k &R+t 34 25
— Ms. Yuan — Rt 39 —
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable ERNRIBEBAEEF SEREREREE K
on demand. The carrying amounts approximates their fair AEHEAEQNFEES  TAAREE - B
value and are denominated in RMB. The outstanding balances FTHRREBERENR EMAILEE -

with the related parties will be settled prior to the listing.

34.PLEDGE OF ASSETS 4. 5 E K
At the end of each reporting period, certain of the Group’s REREHAR AEEETEEEEBURSE
assets were pledged to secure bank borrowings of the Group. BRTITASEBERNRITER AKSEEEFEER
The aggregate carrying amount of the assets of the Group REMROEEDAMENT :

pledged at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2021 2020

20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB T AR T T

Property, plant and equipment (Note 12) ME - WERZENT12) 70,769 46,494
Intangible assets (Note 16) mEEEHit16) — 3,531
Land lease prepayment (Note 15) = 3 78 & TE T R IE (M 22 15) 5,518 5,856
Inventories (Note 17) FE (K aE17) = 2,421
Trade receivables (Note 18) 2 5 WK (K 7#18) — 15,782
Restricted bank deposit (Note 19) BRI SR AT 7 3R (A7 7 19) — 1,000
76,287 75,084
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e M HRRME

35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and
in its investment activities. The financial risks include market
risk (including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall financial risk management policies
focuses on the unpredictability and volatility at financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the financial position, financial performance and cash flows
of the Group. No derivative financial instruments are used to
hedge any risk exposures.

35.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

. HEABREERANFENE

AEERENAFXBEEREKREES T FE A
TRMTEAAXVBAR FHERBREETSR
R(ERNERRRMERR)  FERER KRR
BERR -

AEENEBERBYBEAREERREINERB™
LA EANEREBY  REREERIH
AEBEMBHERN BBERARRESREATRE
REOANEE BERBOIESRTAYEHE
fa] /2L 2 o

BIETHEERABIE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Financial assets cREE
Financial assets measured at amortised B AT B EE -
cost:
Trade and other receivables B 5 & Hith e W 1E 150,560 135,509
Amounts due from related parties JFE UK R B 05 BOIR — 205
Restricted bank deposit 5 BRI R 17 17 3K — 1,000
Cash and cash equivalent BHekIBEEEY 12,609 29,775
163,169 166,489
Financial liabilities cRBE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised & ##5K Xt Ea) 2B &
cost:

Trade and other payables B 5 &k H M ERRIE 46,372 37,133
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,338 2,883
Amount due to a related party FE S R B 5 KA 20 27
Discounted bills financing BRI EERME 3,821 —
Bank borrowings IRITER 105,000 115,000
Other borrowing H b {8 3R 22,534 =
179,085 155,043
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR . HRAMEERAFEFEE)
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

35.2 Foreign currency risk 35.2 JhME R B
Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair SNERREeMIANATEIRRERES
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will RERNEXZHmMESHNRR AEBE
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. BN ERBREERBEEETZENE T E
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arise WIHERS  ELTUIEAEEEZERS
primarily from its sales transactions, which are primarily EANERNNEEE -

denominated in US$ which is not the functional currencies
of the respective entities within the Group to which these
transactions relate.

As at the end of each of reporting period, US$ RERESHR UETHEREHARES
denominated financial assets translated into RMB at the BREARARENERMEENT :

closing rates, are as follows:

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AR T T

Trade receivables H 5 W FRIE 2,440 676
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the TREBTASEE®FABRKRFTET®E R R
Group’s profit after income tax for the year and equity in EaEEEEBEENEERELETAE
regards to an appreciation in the functional currencies MERE ZEHRELEERANEEZEETE
of respective group entities against US$. These A B AL R & SN R B B T AR A A9 b R
sensitivity rates are the rates used when reporting foreign WRKREEELHINEEKT L L IH KN E T

currency risk internally to key management personnel B & EFEE o
and represents management’s best assessment of the
possible change in foreign exchange rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

.U BEAREERAFEREE)

35.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 35.2 S & EL B (4B )
Decrease Decrease
Sensitivity rate in profit in equity
BERE = Al R 2 R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T
Year ended 31 December 2020 5% 29 29
B £20205F12 8318 1L F &
Year ended 31 December 2021 5% 104 104

B Z2021F12A31BLLFE

The same % depreciation in the respective group
entities’ functional currencies against the respective
foreign currencies would have the same magnitude on
the Group’s profit for the year and equity but of opposite
effect.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy, and manages its foreign currency risk by
closely monitor the scale of foreign currency transactions,
foreign currency assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR . HRAMEERAFEFEE)
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

35.3 Interest rate risk 35.3 ¥ R & &

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or MERERREIPReBMIANATFEIRE R
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because EEMSAELGMZEARR - 2 )F
of changes in market interest rates. Bank borrowings and MEFENRITERAREMERERNEER
other borrowing bearing variable rates expose the Group AZReREMNXRR  MARQRRASX
to cash flow interest rate risk and the Company was not MERBETE ASEBAEERERFEZR
subject to interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate risk BR2ERITERREMER - REERT
arises primarily from variable rates bank borrowings and FEHREIHOFERBHRSEE -

other borrowing. The exposure to interest rates for the
Group’s bank deposits is considered immaterial.

i

The interest rates of the Group’s borrowings at the AEBERBREAHERONELDT

reporting date were as follows:

As at 31 December

M®12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Interest rate RMB’000 Interest rate RMB’000
= AR TR F = AR®ET T
Bank borrowings R AT 8K
— Floating interest rate —Z2 B 6.0% 85,000 6.1%—6.5% 95,000
— Fixed interest rate —E B 6.5% 20,000 5.2%-7.0% 20,000
105,000 115,000
Other borrowing H {8 R
— Floating interest rate —2 B 7.2% 22,534 — —
127,534 115,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
35.3 Interest rate risk (Continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s profit for the year and the total equity as at the
end of each reporting period to a possible change in
interest rates.

Increase by 50 basis points 2 IN501E X 2h

.U BEAREERAFEREE)

35.3 R = @ B (48)

TRERASENFRARNEZHRESHR
ER BRI KA LA BBHNHRE -

Decrease in profit for the year and

total equity
F A R R 48R &R 2
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR T T
459 405

The same degree of decrease in basis point would have
the same magnitude on the Group’s profit for the year
and the total equity as at the end of each reporting period
but of opposite effect.

The assumed changes in interest rates are considered
to be reasonably possible based on observation of
current market conditions and represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rate. The analysis is performed on the same basis during
the years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

.U BEMEERAFETE(E)

35.4 Credit risk B4 E=EER K

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk mainly arises from granting credit to customers
in the ordinary course of its operations. The Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying
amounts of the financial assets at end of each reporting
period as detailed in Note 35.1.

Trade and bills receivables

The Group usually grants a credit period of 30 to 180
days (2020: 30 to 180 days) to its customers. Before
accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Credit limits granted to customers are
reviewed periodically.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade and bills
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected
credit loss below also incorporate forward-looking
information.

EERBEESRIANZZH T ARG
TEERTAGREBETEE ERAKHE
SXMBEERENRR AEBAINEE
BREERENREEXEHBBERGETEP
MIEE AKEAXNRSIEER RN
HBATHF AR RER RSB EEN K@
ERR -

AEBEBES TEEF30E180K (20204 :
302180 KR)MEEH - REMERNITRRE
ZE AEBETHEESENEEER
VTAETEFNEERE BRTEFNEER
REEE EBmE °

R EBRHEEER EZRUFARE
WEBREREBEARGEERARFALBABHX
BB -UTHHBEEBERETESAEK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

35.4 Credit risk (Continued)
Trade and bills receivables (Continued)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring ECL, which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade and bills receivables using a
provision matrix and individual assessment. The ECL rate
of collectively assessed trade and bills receivables are
detailed in the following table:

.U BEAREERAFEREE)

BARERREE)

ESEWNMBEREREE (&)

AEBRERBEEMBHRELEANESRGT
ZAERHBAGEEER CRBEEREKRE
MG AEEZRUREARERREEE
REHEHERREE TXRFINRIES
FERFEREREENFRAEEBEE:

2021 2020
20215 20204

Trade receivables B 5 e R IE
Neither past due nor impaired (in %) 7 4% 180 HA 7 4 R 18 (%) 0.9% 1%
Less than 91 days past due (in %) B DR 91K (%) 3% 5%
91-365 days past due (in %) #1912 365K (%) 42%-100% 10%—-30%
More than 365 days past due (in %) i 2 B 1B 365K (%) 100% 40%
Individually impaired (in RMB’000) &5 E(ARE T T) 1,187 1,652
Bills receivables JE U 2 1% — —

Throughout the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, the historical credit loss experience of the
customers of the Group, the forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment
remains no significant changes. As such, expected credit
loss rate throughout the years remains stable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

.U BEMEERAFETE(E)

35.4 Credit risk (Continued) BAEEEK ()

Other receivables and amounts due from
related parties

In order to minimise the credit risk of other receivables,
the management of the Group has designated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals. The management would make periodic
collective and individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience as well as current external
information and adjusted to reflect probability weighted
forward-looking information, including the default rate
where the relevant debtors operates. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In these regards, the
credit risk of other receivables are considered to be low.

Besides, the management is of opinion that there is
no significant increase in credit risk on these other
receivables since initial recognition as the risk of default
is low after considering the factors as set out in Note 2.9
and, thus, no ECL recognised during the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: nil).

Restricted bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents

The credit risks are considered to be insignificant
because the counterparties are financial institutions that
have sound credit rating.

HtERFEREXBEBHS FH

AREEREREMEERENEERR K
SEEREECRERE XBEREEEERER
RELEEEH ZEEESRBERAELEE
RRELBERBRARBAIINEER - EH
5 H A B WK TR A R UR EEE TT R 88 N (E
PIREME - HEETHBEARBRBE X NED
REEER BREAHEEBALENEY
K o 70 HIE E A EE B AR B A RE IR 5% BX R
ETHAWCBMER - AT mE - EA
FBRFENEERREAESER -

BN - B E B B M 2.9 H E X%
RERRENRBER BZSHMEK
HENEERKRBEVIRERARIT EEE
#hn - AL E E2021F 128318 I FE I #
HERTE Bl {5 B & 18 (20204 « £8) -

BERHRTEAREEZERELEEY

FERRKREBAMTIRE BREFHA
BEBREEARNUBEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRME

35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR (.U BEABEERANFEFEE)

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

35.5 Liquidity risk BSRBESER

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset. The Group is exposed to
liquidity risk in respect of settlement of its payables,
and also in respect of its cash flow management. The
Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate level
of liquid assets and committed lines of funding to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its financial liabilities as at 31
December 2021. When the creditor has a choice of
when the liability is settled, the liability is included on
the basis of the earliest date when the Group can be
required to pay. Where the settlement of the liability
is in instalments, each instalment is allocated to
the earliest period in which the Group is committed
to pay. The contractual maturity analysis below is
based on the undiscounted cash flows of the financial
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M RRME

35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

.UM BEABREERAFEFEGE)

355 Liquidity risk (Continued) BSHREBESEAR(E)

More than More than
1 year but 2 years but Total
Within 1 year  not exceeding  not exceeding  undiscounted Carrying
or on demand two years five years amount amount
—FR SR-F ESNTES

FREXR BFEBME BFEARE RERAE REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT TR ARBTTR ARETT ARETR ARETR

As at 31 December 2020 2020612 A31A
Trade and other payables BHREMEMZE 37133 = = 37133 37133
Lease liabilities HEBR 1,648 1,367 — 3,015 2,883
Amount due to a related party e B A R 27 = — 27 27
Bank borrowings FIER 117,432 = = 117,432 115,000
156,240 1,367 — 157,607 155,043

As at 31 December 2021 ®2021F12831A
Trade and other payables B REMERNTIE 46,372 - - 46,372 46,372
Lease liabilities HEBR 1,367 — - 1,367 1,338
Amount due to a related party JE 7 B B 7 58 20 — - 20 20
Discounted bills financing HRZEEE 3,821 = = 3,821 3,821
Bank borrowings RITER 107,569 — - 107,569 105,000
Other borrowing HibfEH 9,942 9,942 497 24,855 22,534
169,091 9,942 4,971 184,004 179,085

35.6 Fair value measurements of financial BOEMTENDAFEEE

instruments

HRIMERE AEEeREERARE
MEEEEERSREHRNAFELE
EXRER-

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities are not materially different from their fair value
at the end of each reporting period due to their short
maturities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRME

36.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 36.EXERE

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide
an adequate return to the equity holders by pricing goods and
services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure
and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of the net debt to equity ratio. For this purpose, net
debt is defined as borrowings, discounted bills financing and
lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. In order to
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to the equity holders, issue new shares and
raise new debt financing.

The net debt-to-equity ratio as at the end of each reporting
period is as follows:

AEBHAATIDRIEAREA LSS
BEEH LB BAE SR RE T EERK
THBOES BAAERSAARRERD
% -

AEEEBREEHRTEEARE  LHEREL
BERRESHERFE AEEANFABRESLL
FEEEREEARBE - Lt 5 FEBT
RER/EFR BARERELBERERRS
RESEEY REFIABRZLEX  XEH
AREAESFAARNKENESE - BITH
BEEEFEBRE

MTRREREHRNFABESLE:

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AR¥EF T

Bank borrowings RITER 105,000 115,000
Other borrowing H b g 22,534 =
Discounted bills financing IR ER A 3,821 —
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,338 2,883
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B-ReERBREEED (12,609) (29,775)
Net debt F AR 120,084 88,108
Total equity 48 214,982 164,292
Net debt to equity ratio FEEESLEE 55.86% 53.63%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37.EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31
December 2021:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

As a result of the continuous outbreak of novel
coronavirus (“COVID-19”), the global has taken numerous
measures including travel and transportation restrictions
to prevent the spread of the epidemic. Certain measures
were undertaken by the PRC central government and
various provincial or municipal governments including
but not limited to implementation of travel restrictions
and quarantine policies. Pending development of such
subsequent non-adjusting event, the Group’s financial
results may be affected, the extent of which could not be
estimated as at date of this report.

On 11 January 2022, the Company issued 114,200,000
new shares at HK$1.22 per share for a net proceeds,
after deduction of the underwriting fees and commission
and the estimated expenses payable by the Company,
of approximately HK$92.8 million, by way of initial public
offering of the Company on the Stock Exchange.

On 31 January 2022, the Company further issued
3,442,000 new shares at HK$1.22 per share for a net
proceeds, after deduction of the underwriting fees and
commission and the estimated expenses payable by the
Company, of approximately HK$4.2 million, upon partial
exercise of the over-allotment option granted by the
Company.

A M RRME

V. HMEHKREEH

ATE REHR2021F12A318 & & &£ ¢

(i)

(i)

(iii)

HRHFUERBE(HUEUTRES] KA
B 2RRMSAEERE BRETER
BERE - ALK RITHRERE - HEF
RBF R % 848 kB A RRE THHEE -
BRERETRNE®ROITRG XEHBEE -
FEHREBAIFEAEEHNBRIKR KK
B BEEERITE ERERARS
BHIE R (At o

KRR R2022F1AMBEB T ETE X
A F % E 0 %17 T114,200,000 0% 37 J%
B81.228 70 ITEREFBLEHNBREHEE
B - BeURARABHEMNAIBO S
9Q28HEETT °

AR AR A R BE D IR R 7R 202241 A 31
BESBSITER XARE—FSBITT
3,442,0000% 7 %+ & M1.228 L FTB N
BIFELNGKEHEER A2 ARKAF
TEHEMAXZORBI2EESBT °
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PROPERTIES OWNED BY THE GROUP
REBPERHYE

Type of properties Location Main usage
YIEER =+ FTEAE
Land No. 519, Section 2, Industrial use

Xinhua Avenue
Chengdu Strait Science
and Technology
Industry Development
Park, Wenjiang District,
Chengdu Sichuan
Province, the PRC
) FEM)IgkETmAILERE ITERASE
78 B P == ) S EE BB B
B 372 K38 — BR5195%

Buildings No. 519, Section 2, Two factory buildings, one staff
Xinhua Avenue dormitory, one staff cafeteria
Chengdu Strait Science and two power distribution
and Technology houses
Industry Development
Park, Wenjiang District,
Chengdu Sichuan
Province, the PRC

BEEY FEM)IEKETRIE MEBE —HEIES  —@
BERMENMREXHAE BIRELMEEESR

B #7#E K 8 — R5195%
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Description
Ei g

A parcel of land with a site

area of approximately
38,391 square metres

— I 1 B2 TE 5 438,391°F

JTARE L

Buildings built on the

parcel of land at
No.519, west section of
Xinhua Road, Cross-
Strait Science and
Technology Industry
Development Park,
Wenjiang District,
Chengdu, Sichuan,
the PRC with an
aggregate gross floor
area of approximately
34,613.24 square
metres

R A1 A B ED TR

L R R L R E
el 2% [ 7 2 K 78 EX 519
SREMMEEY B
AT T8 %) /234,613.24F
75 oK



Investment Property

Location
wE

No. 519, Section 2,

Xinhua Avenue Chengdu Strait
Science and Technology Industry
Development Park,

Wenjiang District, Chengdu
Sichuan Province, the PRC

B M || & pX B TR OT & 15k
MEMREZFRBENEZENE
— E&5195%

PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT

Type of properties
MERR

Building

ZEY

BRENME

Main usage
FERAR

One factory building

_ﬁaﬁﬁ’?ﬂ%

RFERENYR

Lease term

HEFH

Short lease

MHEE
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FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

FHMBHME
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE
2018 2019 2020 2021
20184 20194 20204 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AR®TR
Revenue I &= 159,356 167,314 182,759 213,668
Cost of sales 8 & B A (81,472) (77,985) (83,140)  (100,046)
Gross profit E F 77,884 89,329 99,619 113,622
Other income H bl A 8,083 4,761 6,025 5,509
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (12,587) (14,855) (17,764) (19,855)
Administrative and other operating TEREHEMEERE
expenses (22,437) (31,088) (32,145) (31,587)
Finance costs B 1 B AR (7,483) (6,669) (7,241) (8,229)
Profit before income tax B B 18 B A1 & R 43,460 41,478 48,494 59,460
Income tax expense Fr 45 %t 2 (6,254) (6,401) (7,481) (8,770)
Profit and total comprehensive FRBRARZEKZLE
income for the year 37,206 35,077 41,013 50,690
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BEE 258,931 291,533 337,562 416,764
Total liabilities BEIGE 172,670 168,254 173,270 201,782
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